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Financial Summary

EERE
SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ARBTRTE AREFTT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 22,487,671 23,328,991 21,405,723 16,931,929 12,590,784
E7 Gross profit 7,308,387 7,779,629 7,401,844 4,942,612 4,043,057
B PS8 A& Profit before income tax 414,678 1,116,048 1,076,929 396,391 682,465
TSR Income tax expense (129,141) (199,636) (221,041) (84,451) (163,397)
FE i F Profit for the year 285,537 916,412 855,888 311,940 519,068
RN BIER Profit attributable to equity
BHEABLET holders of the Company 285,537 916,412 855,888 311,940 519,068
ey Dividends 57,107 183,282 171,178 93,582 155,712
AR¥S ARES ARES ARES ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
BREREF Basic earnings per share 7.18 25.46 23.78 8.67 14.42
MW12B31H
As at 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AR®BTRT AREFRT AREBEFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 21,264,409 18,967,792 16,539,813 13,737,392 9,580,685
waE Total liabilities 10,427,671 10,825,624 8,868,745 6,926,497 2,921,148
o Total equity 10,836,738 8,142,168 7,671,068 6,810,895 6,659,537
BeMEE&EEY  Cashand cash equivalents 1,804,022 1,413,929 2,290,809 2,369,050 2,427,362
nE(aE)/ Net current (Liabilities)/
BEFR assets (632,403) (828,438) (30,930) (469,559) 1,497,772
4 #i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2014, the world economy still struggled for a recovery, while
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) was in the process of
adjusting its economic structure. The PRC witnessed slightly slower
year-over-year (YoY) GDP growth of 7.4% in 2014, compared with
7.7% recorded in both 2012 and 2013. The slowdown in growth
became a new norm. Clouded by the economic environment and
the economic adjustments, the food and beverage industry grew
slower, resulting in changes in consumption behaviour which
imposed impact on the industry. Accordingly, the key to capitalise
on opportunities for next round of development is to understand
how consumers would spend.

We have solid operating foundation, sound financial position,
core competitiveness and efficient operating management. We
expand our market share and accomplish the operating targets
set by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) through
organisational advancements and extensive marketing activities.
In order to achieve these corporate goals, we stepped up our
internal structural reforms, continuously improved our product mix
and enhanced our management. The continual improvement of
our portfolios in terms of product and profitability was regarded
as the most important criteria in assessing our business segment
performance. Through stringent control over operating expenses
and streamlined operations, our overall competitiveness was
enhanced with higher organisational efficiency.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) strived to adhere
to the strategy of focused operation so as to bring continuous
enhancements to our brand value. In 2014, with our prudent
steps, pragmatic manner and proven ability in effective execution,
the Group recorded revenue of RMB22,487.7 million and profit
attributable to shareholders of RMB285.5 million.
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In 2014, we continued to follow the strategy of tapping into the
mid-to-high end instant noodles market. The overall revenue from
instant noodles continued to grow and hit RMB7,960.3 million,
with 1.7% growth YoY. “Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Beef
Flavoured Noodles (183 4-F%E) ” continued to be the top-
selling spicy-flavoured instant noodles in the PRC. “Soup Daren
(%3 A) " achieved a good start by leveraging on young people’s
preference towards mid-to-high end instant noodles, and was
ready to boom. The innovative product “Revolution Noodles ( &
%i) " brought new blood into the market. First developed by the
Group, the patented “The Q Wide Noodles (FTQ&E4H ) ” provides
our consumers with brand-new tastes with enriched ingredients.
By delivering upgraded flavours, the high-priced instant noodles
product “The Champion (FEE ) ” set up a new milestone in the
research and innovation of instant noodles.

In terms of beverage business, the Group recorded revenue of
RMB14,004.6 million in 2014, representing a 7.6% slide YoY, mainly
due to the slowdown of the macro-economic growth, the change of
consumer’s choice of beverages and the fact that the majority part
of the PRC experienced a relatively cooler summer in 2014 than the
past. Accordingly, the general demand for beverages decreased
across the country. Tea drinks and juice drinks businesses shrank
while the milk tea business showed slower growth. How to innovate
products and to accurately understand the consumption trend
will be the main theme for the beverage segment in 2015. Further
to the excellent performance of “Haizhiyan (/82 =) ”, a brand
new product with a refreshing flavour in 2014, another innovative
product “Classmate Xiaoming (/NZ R £ )" targeting young
consumers will be launched in 2015. The Group’s milk tea business
continued to secure the leading position in the market, and is
expected to expand in terms of volume and market share.

Based on the overall performance of the Group in 2014 and taking
the surplus, overall financial condition and capital expenditure of
the Group into account, the Board will propose a payment of final
cash dividend of RMB1.322 cents (amounting to a total dividend
of RMB57.1 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014 at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2015, we expect there will be a stable economic growth in the
PRC with continuous structural adjustments in the industry and
a moderate GDP growth rate. With the gradual implementation
of economic structural adjustments and the effect of economic
benefits from urbanisation starting to show, we hold an optimistic
view on the steady growth of the food and beverage market. The
Group will continue its strategy of focused operation by following
the directions of urbanisation planning, and place emphases on
key markets. Meanwhile, the Group will keep abreast of market
trends and consumers’ preference, develop high-end products and
continue to innovate to meet consumers’ needs. The momentum
for the growth of the Group’s performance in the long-run will be
established to bring reasonable returns to all shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The stable development of the Group rides on the support and
efforts of different parties. On behalf of the Board, | hereby extend
my sincere gratitude to our clients, suppliers, business partners,
financial institutions and shareholders for their full support and to
our staff for their dedication and contribution over the past year.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

17 March 2015
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In 2014, the world economy still struggled for a recovery, while
the PRC was in the process of adjusting its economic structure.
The PRC witnessed slightly slower YoY GDP growth of 7.4% in
2014, compared with 7.7% recorded in both 2012 and 2013. The
slowdown in growth became a new norm. Amid the economic
restructuring in China, the growth of food and beverage industry
across the country was affected. Certain main product categories
showed stagnant trends or even experienced downsizing to a
limited extent.

In 2014, due to the sluggish macro-economic growth, the
adjustment of economic structure, the change of consumer
preference, and the fact that the majority parts of the PRC
experienced a relatively cooler summer in 2014, the general
demand for beverages was undermined and therefore affected the
Group’s financial performance. Below are the detailed discussion of
the principal activities of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB22,487.7 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 3.6% from RMB23,329.0 million for
the corresponding period last year. Revenue from the instant
noodles increased by 1.7%, and revenue from the beverages
products decreased by 7.6%, standing at RMB7,960.3 million and
RMB14,004.6 million respectively, accounting for 35.4% and 62.3%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. During the Year, gross
profit of the Group decreased by 6.1% from RMB7,779.6 million
to RMB7,308.4 million while gross profit margin decreased by 0.8
percentage point from 33.3% for the corresponding period of last
year to 32.5%.

During the Year, in light of the effective efforts of the Group in
utilising marketing resources and placing on the market precisely,
the selling and marketing expenses for the Year decreased by
7.8% to RMB6,294.8 million (2013: RMB6,825.0 million). During
the Year, administrative expenses amounted to RMB967.8 million
(2013: RMB840.0 million), which was mainly attributable to the
corresponding increase in expenses from new production base
construction and preparation. During the Year, share of profit of
investments accounted for using the equity method decreased to
RMB85.0 million (2013: RMB88.4 million).
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During the Year, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was RMB285.5 million, representing a decrease of 68.8% as
compared with RMB916.4 million of the corresponding period last
year, which were mainly attributable to the reasons that the PRC
experienced a relatively cooler summer in 2014 than the past,
resulting in a decrease in the general demand for beverages across
the country, leading to a recession of the beverage market and a
lack of one-off gain from disposals of financial assets amounted
to RMB284.8 million as of the corresponding period same as last
year, together with a decrease of RMB211.1 million of government
grants. Earnings per share were RMB7.18 cents (2013: RMB25.46
cents).

For the Year, the Group’s instant noodles business recorded a
revenue of RMB7,960.3 million, representing a growth of 1.7%,
as compared with the corresponding period last year, having
exceeded the industry growth rate for five consecutive years.
According to the data of Nielsen, during the year of 2014, the
instant noodles market continued to exhibit a general downward
trend. The overall sales amount and sales volume of instant noodles
declined by 2.7% and 7.0%, respectively, as compared with the
corresponding period last year. The Group’s market share grew to
17.9% during the Year, up by 0.6 percentage point as compared
with the corresponding period last year. Especially, a significant
growth in market share was recorded in high-priced instant noodles
sector (RMB5.0 or above), which further strengthened the Group’s
confidence and determination in its high-value products business.

The key product line “Uni-President Lao Tan (#—£18)”
maintained its leading position in terms of market share amid the
severe market competition from increasingly similar products,
thanks to its continual creative efforts in product strengths and
the Group’s marketing and sales. In respect to product strengths,
“Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and Fish Flavoured Noodles ( £ 18 [ 3
£8) " and other sub-flavours were put on the market after “Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage and Beef Flavoured Noodles ( 218 SR A1 40 )
under the “Uni-President Lao Tan (£ —2Z18) " line, as enrichment
to the line to provide customers with more options and experience
with “sourness and crunchiness (E£%%) ”. To allow consumers to
experience the “Authentic Sourness and Crunchiness ( 1E 5= #) i 58
B252) ", “Uni-President Lao Tan (#—338) " is subject to stringent
control on the whole production chain and keeps on perfecting
each of the production procedures spanning from the cultivation
and pickling of mustard greens to the production and packaging of
the final products. At the commencement ceremony of the “China
Food Safety Publicity Week (2B R REZ2EERE) " in June 2014,
the Group’s pickled cabbage pack production plant in Shifang was
formally granted the title of “National Food Science Education Base
(2ERBBIEHEEM) ", demonstrating recognition of, and
reward for, the Group’s achievements in addressing “food safety
(RMEZ2)” and following the “Policy of Agriculture, Farmer and
Rural Area (= 2 ) " from the relevant government authority in
the PRC.
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In respect of marketing, the Group
endeavored to promote the brand image
of “Uni-President Lao Tan (& —£18)”,
increasing awareness of its uncompromising
“authenticity (IEZR) " among customers.
lts endorser, Mr. Wang Han (;E3) , is the
embodiment of its status as the “master in
Lao Tan (Z1E5RAD) " with his lively image as
a humorous master. The Group also carried
on its well-received pickled cabbage plant
visits themed “authentic as you see it (1E
REB/R)" in September 2014. For the
first time, Mr. Wang Han led consumers to
visit our plant to experience the traditional
production procedures of “Uni-President
Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage (%t — % 18
)" in person. The activity, which is so
unforgettable, have spread our concept
of “Made by 81-day Fermentation with
Traditional Pickling Jars ({418« L L\ +—XKEE) " by word
of mouth among consumers. In view of the increasing popularity
of new media among consumers, the Group has in-depth and
cross-sector collaboration with “iQIYI (E &£ ) " in Internet media
including “free VIP coupons for iQIYI video (E & EVIPR B E %
%) " clipped in our products as well as placing “Master’s Theatre
(REMEIS) ” on its video platform in order to enable consumers to
have a double flavour and visual experience.

The Group always strives to deliver higher quality and better
taste by creating new products. With five years’ cultivation and
promotion, high-priced noodles “Soup Daren (/5% A ) ” recorded
more than a double of its sales in the year 2014 and grasped
the opportunity from the rapid growth of cup-contained instant
noodles, becoming the number two high-end cup noodles brand
in 2014 (according to the data of

Nielsen). Focusing on the quality of

the “Soup (J%) " and by marketing

on Internet and social groups with

new media, with five years of word-

of-mouth marketing, “Soup Daren

(% AN) " has successfully

gathered a group of fans among

university students and white-collar

workers. The Group is steadily

expanding the market coverage of

“Soup Daren (J5# A )" from first-
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tier cities to inland cities in order to satisfy the
increasing consumers’ demand for quality instant
noodles. The potential of “Soup Daren (/5 &
A)"is huge.

In August 2014, the Group unveiled a product

“Revolution Noodles (£ 4i) " which might mark

a new chapter for noodles, in hope to “lead the

traditional instant noodles industry onto an innovative

revolutions (5|48&#7) ”. The product uses patented

al dente noodle “The Q Wide Noodles (FIQE %) 7,

featured with chewy texture. The upgraded ingredients of

large real meat and vegetable slices enrich the flavour bag and

delivers richer taste. In “2014 Instant Food Conference-Instant

Food Exhibition (20145 Rm AR EHERmE) ", “Revolution

Noodles (%) ” won two awards, namely “2014 Award for

Creation of Instant Food Industry (2014F [ F{E R T EAIF)

and namely “2014 Award of Best Instant Food (20145 [E &£ H

R )", established a role model in the upgrade process of the
instant noodles industry.

Uphold the brand philosophy of offering the world’s best noodles,
the Group introduced “The Champion (B E#5) ” to the market by
the end of 2014. As a cross-industry cooperation with “Mazilu ( 55
F#E) ", a long lasting store and the only Lanzhou Beef Noodles
restaurant with the title of “China’s Time-honored Brand ( A2 £ &
%) " the Group presented a new product “The Champion (&
%) " Lanzhou Beef Noodles, in efforts to industrialize and pep up
the well-known restaurant and its noodles with orthodox taste. “The
Champion (JEE#5) " is positioned as high-priced instant noodles.
It is expected to give customers brand-new, better taste noodles by
using innovative processes.
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Looking ahead, the upgrade requirement within the instant noodles
industry will become increasingly evident on the back of slow sales
growth and consumers’ preference for more innovative products
with high added-value. In response to the trend, the Group will
continue to adhere to the strategy of “value sales ({B{E% ) ” in
2015, making “value-added innovations ({E{E&I%7) " as drivers for
growth.

Beverage Business

During the Year, revenue from the Group’s beverage business
amounted to RMB14,004.6 million. The performance of each major
product line is described as follows:

Tea Drinks

In response to changes in the overall economic environment,
consumers’ perception of spending and purchasing power
underwent rapid changes. The growth of the milk beverage market
was slowing down as a whole. As categories like water, functional
drinks and plant protein drinks kept on booming and emerging, the
market composition was modified. More variety turned out to be a
significant crowding-out effect, leading to a negative growth in tea
drinks sales. According to the data of Nielsen, the sales amount
of tea drinks (excluding milk tea) recorded a negative growth of
3.6% in 2014. Besides the impact of below average temperatures
in last summer, consumption shift between categories was another
main reason for the decrease in sales. The phenomenon indicated
consumers demand for innovative beverage products.

#F— ¥ EER AR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2014, the Group’s revenue from tea drinks was RMB5,525.8
million. “Uni lce Tea (45— /K4ALZ%) ” was upgraded to appear more
youthful by switching to hourglass-shaped bottle and a lighter
formula, in attracting target customers born in the 90s. The brand
conducted a thematic activity, “Skateboarding Unlimited in Two
Cities: Win Free Drinks for Yours! ( JREE 3 E BN - B2 IS ER) ” to
create bonding with young people. “Uni Green Tea (#:—#4%Z%)”
continued its genuine flavour of tea and low sugar features by
using tender and fresh tea buds, in line with the general concept of
health. In addition, the brand continued to advocate experiencing
the “nature via green cycling activities (B &4k 5 17) " which
asserts its belief of “experiencing the nature (3T E #&) " through
introducing the elements “Green (4k£2) " and “Cycling (§5317) "
continually. Besides black tea and green tea, the Group in this Year
also strengthened its efforts in promoting its plant drinks “Natural
Intuition (182 ) ” in key provinces, initially acquiring effect with
40.5% growth in revenue.

For 2015, adhering to our “value sales ({B{E% $#4) ” approach as
always, the Group’s marketing efforts will focus more on post-90s
generation consumers by strengthening the usage of new media
and allowing more interaction with the target consumers. To
exemplify new slogan “Young Age Unlimited (& & & %FR) " of
“Uni lce Tea (£ —7K4L4%) ” to be shown in the coming up series
of advertisements to attract young consumers, we have signed a
new endorser Kris Wu (275 L) who is a really hot star among
post-90s’ young people as a move to expand the “Uni Ice Tea (%t
—KALZL) " brand’s customer base. “Uni Green Tea (i —4k%%) "
will promote the concept of healthy green tea with the help of on-
line activities, persuading consumers to adopt green tea-drinking
habits. Meanwhile, the brand’s cycling campaign, which assert its
belief of “experiencing the nature (13T B A) " by encouraging
customers to bike, will enter into the consecutive third year.
Considering the post-95s and post-2000s generations are about
to play an increasing active role in the society and they have their
unique prominent features in consumption and purchasing powers
(from low-price to value-for-money, from mass
product to individualised product), the Group will
launch its new product “Classmate Xiaoming (/]»
Z[[EZ)” a cold extracted refreshing tea drink
without bitter taste. This differentiating attempt
is targeted specifically at young students. In
the year 2015, the Group’s tea drinks business
will continue to develop steadily with two key
products “Uni lce Tea (£ —/KALZS) ” and “Uni
Green Tea (£t —#:4%) 7, with differentiating
innovations exploring new sales growth engines
with an aim to restructure the overall product
profolio.
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The Group’s juice drinks business recorded a revenue of
RMB3,938.8 million in 2014. According to the data of Nielsen,
the overall juice drinks market displayed a negative growth of
1.6% in sales amount and the decrease in sales volume even at
a rate of 4.7%. Low concentration juice products, despite being
regarded as obsolete, still dominated the market but their slides
in sales reflected more evident. However, lemon and coconut
flavours maintained their strong momentum, while mid and high
concentration juices also performed well. In short, the overall juice
drinks market witnessed polarisation development.

“Uni More Juice Series (#t—% RJt) " continued to promote
ardently its brand value “More Vitamin C, More Beauty ( % C%E
=) ". In 2014, to attract consumers born in the 90s, the Group
continued its cooperation with “Asian Prince” Jang Keun-Suk ( 5R1R
T8 ) and launched a new endorser, the famous Korean actress Park
Shin Hye (#MZ2) , in a joint on-line campaign with Tudou.com
(£Z4#) , the “C-Girl Beauty Contest (25 C-Girl) ”. A number of
first-tier stars were also invited to amplify the effect of the activities
and enlarge the fans group of “More Juice Series (% 25t+) .

In 2014, the overall pear juice market shrank. However, “Crystal
Sugar Pear Drink (7K#EZ L) " under the “Seasonal Drinks ( £k Y
Z=) " series of the Group continued to improve its quality by sticking
to the ingredient of selected Dangshan Pear, coupled with special
stewing process, ensuring customers with better taste. Adhering
to the brand’s slogan “Moisten and Sooth Your Heart (— A&
) ", of “Seasonal Drinks ( & U2 ) ”, the Group cooperated with
“The Voice of China (FREIAFZ &) " in hosting large music festival
named “Seasonal Drinks Music Festival — The Voice — Quenching
and Soothing Voices (R E N EF4ET HESE HO

f) " in 2014, where famous stars were invited

to perform the growing rules of four seasons,

demonstrating the concept of living in a way of

following the season’s law. By this music festival,

we successfully attracted the fans of these famous

stars to become the customers of “Seasonal Drinks

(REMZE) .
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As an attempt to grasp the growth in refreshing drinks and
lemon flavours, the Group launched an innovative juice-flavoured
functional drink, “Haizhiyan (825 ) ” in April 2014. The lemon-
flavoured “Haizhiyan (& 2 &) " stands out by its uniquely
refreshing flavour, elegant Maldives blue bottle and its special
positioning of “cooling you down (VEIFEEZR) ", With new media
promotion and events such as “Beach Festival (/8 #0) ”, “Beach
Volleyball (X ##HEEL) ” and “Energy Cool Run (REEE:#) 7, the
association of “Haizhiyan (7825 ) " with Mediterranean traditional
cooling tricks and blue ocean has deeply impressed the customers
and the product becomes popular among consumers rapidly.
Within a short period of eight months since its launch in the market,
the lemon-flavoured “Haizhiyan (/825 )" had been one of the
top 10 juice drinks in the PRC (according to the data of Nielsen),
a spectacular performance in new product sales in recent years.
Given this success, the Group followed up immediately with the
second flavour, “grapefruit (Fa4d) ”, in November to satisfy the
demand of different flavours of the consumers.

The newly launched Chinese-featured juice brand “Ruyin (Z0#k) "
in December 2014 delivered the first winter drink “Stewed Pear with
White Fungus Flavour Juice (FL47F5 ) ”, a perfect mix of tremella
and snow pear in promoting traditional life-nourishing concept.
The drink tastes magnificent when hot and is welcomed by many
consumers. Subsequently, gift set of products were also launched
to seize the gift market share.
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In 2015, the juice drinks business of the Group will deploy a multi-
brand strategy in meeting different consumer preferences. “More
Juice Series (#i—% F 1) will continue upgrading its quality,
sticking to the brand image of “beauty (Z5£)” and making
the brand young and fashion by using entertainment stars as
endorsers. To build up its warm, considerate and trustworthy
image, “Seasonal Drinks (X 4Z=) " brand will differentiate itself
by carefully selected ingredients, highlighting its stew flavour and
deliver the philosophy of seasonal drinks fitting in the seasonal
needs of oneself. “Haizhiyan (82 )" will keep “Cooling You
Down (/BB ) " as its slogan and develop a new “calamansi
(<£4#%) " flavor to give consumers more choices. The brand will
try to boost its sales through “Cooling You Down, Enjoy Cruise
(SR mER - 5 ZHER) ” activities. “Ruyin (Z08R) ” will provide a
new series of products with stronger Chinese features to attract
consumers who favour traditional tastes.

According to the data of Nielsen, the milk tea market grew slower
with only 1.1% growth in sales amount in 2014 as compared with
2013. The Group’s market share was 62.1% for the whole year and
63.9% for the second half of the year, being a secured leader in the
market.

With the brand’s core concept remained intact, the Group launched
a campaign to rebuild the brand image with “Qing Lan Milk Tea (5
EEHAS) " in the second half of 2014, The product packaging in a
series of special “Memorial Bottles ( 42/&Jf1) ” effectively advocates
the idea of “Good Mood on the Go ({F/MBERESF #) ", It delivers
not just a bottle of milk tea, but also a bottle of mood booster to the
consumers. The bottle design is fit for drinking at all circumstances
and occasions, thus consumers’ affection to our products can be
reinforced as they drink “Qing Lan Milk Tea (B5 & #1245 ) ” from time
to time. In 2014, we engaged new spokesman, Amber Kuo ( Zf3¢
'2) to shot a commercial for “Qing Lan Milk Tea (BSEE#125) ”. This
commercial was broadcasted via both China Central Television and
Star Channel to achieve the optimal effect. By enhancing interaction
with consumers through “Stay Happy Without Complaints for 21
days (21X F 0BT #4%) " campaign, the brand also creates
topics anytime, anywhere.
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In 2014, “Qing Lan Milk Tea (¥
BEE)”

satisfying consumers’ needs to build

continue to focus on

a differentiating value-for-money
brand. The key product “Assam Milk
Tea (FBERIFIZ) " went deeper in
its markets by expanding to markets
in rural areas and towns in key
provinces. “Fried Green Milk Tea (Bl
ZW4E) 7, the first milk tea product
based on green tea, delivered a
brand-new drink texture to consumers. It recorded three-time
growth in sales in 2014, and consolidated its position as the
second largest ready-to-drink milk tea in the category.

In 2015, the Group’s milk tea business will devote to improving
product quality and stepping up its marketing efforts. The package
will be upgraded to a more harmonious design for products under
the same series. New flavours will be added to create needs for more
innovation in categories, with an ultimate aim to expand the milk tea
market and strengthen the Group’s leading position in the sector.

According to the data of Nielsen, the Group’s “A-Ha (HrG)”

Coffee took up 16.2% of the market in 2014, ranking the second.

With comprehensive product line and young and creative brand

image, “A-Ha (7P ) " Coffee enjoyed stable sales and cultivated

brand awareness at the same time. In 2015, the Group’s coffee

business will stick to the principle of “differentiation by high quality
SmE - Z#8{) " and achieve “stable growth and change in

market composition (&1 K&« F &) " within this stage. The

business will continue to introduce and refine innovative products

to cater for growing consumer

demands, while speed up and

put more efforts in sales channel

development in key first-tier and

second-tier cities, all to sharpen our

competitive edges.
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Revenue from the Group’s bottled water business jumped up
by 9.1%, mainly due to focusing on the operation of high-priced
brand “ALKAQUA”. Through “organising consumer visits to water
origins and plants of bottled water (ZJR 2 fk) " as well as Weibo
marketing, “ALKAQUA” won the favour and recognition from its
target consumers, and produced a 23.9% growth in revenue
compared with the same period last year, higher than the market
average of 14.7% (according to the data of Nielsen). In addition to
high quality spring water source from Bama Long Life Village, the
Group’s Changbai Mountain Plant was also put into operation by
the end of 2014, significantly increasing its productivity for mineral
water. Incidentally, Changbai Mountain in China, plus Alps in
Europe and Caucasus in Russia are recognised as the three golden
sources of spring water. The Group’s Changbai Mountain Water
Plant is located in Antu ( Z2[El ) Town, or so-called the “first town in
Changbai Mountain (£ H L& —) ”. The town is renowned as
the “Origin of Mineral Water in China ( 7 BI#& &K Z #8) ”. Mineral
water product from “Hongfeng Spring (4L 2% ) " water is regarded
as world-class mineral water. Together with world-leading ozone-
free sterilisation technologies, this product meets the standards
of the European Union and provides consumers with high quality
natural mineral water.

In 2015, “ALKAQUA” will comprehensively promote its brand image
as a high-end water product with the theme “Good Water, Unique
Style (47K B A #3) ”. Endeavours will be made via on-line
media activities and in acquiring authorised distributors to increase
the exposure of the product, the Group aims to make “ALKAQUA”
as one of the first choices in mid-to-high end bottled water.
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The research and development team (the “R&D”) of the Group
continued to be an innovative pioneer in the industry and strived for
developing high added-value products that would capture hidden
consumer demand. “Revolution Noodles (£ %#) " was launched
in 2014, which replaced traditional ingredients for instant noodles
with large real meats and vegetables, surprised and impressed
consumers both in visual and taste. Coupled with newly developed
and patented noodle “The Q Wide Noodles (FIQ&E4E) " that
featured in smooth texture, the double revolution features of
“Revolution Noodles (41 ) ” brings perfect eating experience to
consumers. In August 2014, Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology held an expert evaluation meeting for “Uni-President
Revolution Series Instant Noodles (i — 28 R 5| 5 E4) " in
Beijing. The Institute commented that “Revolution Noodles (&
H) " is a kind of extra-wide noodles that absorbs water quickly and
remains chewy for a long time and is so successful in industrialised
mass production by applying an overall world-leading technology. In
September 2014, “Revolution Noodles (Z%& ) ” won two awards,
namely “2014 Award for Creation of Instant Food Industry (2014
FHEHERMITEAIFE)” and “2014 Award of the Best Instant
Food (2014FEHEFERM) .

Following “Revolution Noodles (% 4f) ", the Group’s R&D team
brought along a high-end instant noodles brand “The Champion
(EER) ", which offers “good noodle take-away to be consumed
anywhere anytime (378 —Bi4f 48 - BERSBEHL B KB ) ", The
noodle and ingredients in “The Champion (7E&E %) " is an upgrade
of those in “Revolution Noodles (%) ”, for instance large real
meats, thick soups, and noodles cut by patented technology. The
development of “The Champion (7@ #5) ” Lanzhou beef noodles
also benefited from the cooking technique guidiance provided by
“Mazilu (& F#%) ”, a China Time-honored noodle shop, in order
to make sure authentic taste is not compromised with the joy of
convenience as if the noodles are served in the noodle shop.
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“Uni-President Lao Tan (4 —#38) " series’ new product is
“Pickled Bean Rib Flavoured Noodles (B S AHEE4) ", Picked
bean is a traditional vegetable ingredient with jaune (bright yellow)
color, strong sour scent, crispy texture and tasty flavour which
makes one to miss after just having a bite. “Pickled Bean Rib
Flavoured Noodles (B2 Z AHEE4E) " are made by the traditional
Sichuan style, enriched by Lao Tan pickled beans that underwent
eighty-one days’ full fermentation. Lao Tan pickled beans form a
sharp contrast with other ingredients, offering sour and crunch
tastes with chewy noodles.

The R&D team developed “Haizhiyan (2 &) " lemon flavoured
drink as a product to help absorbing water quickly into the body
as a functional drink in summer to quench thirst. The product
aims to secure a footing in vitamin and sports drinks market.
Different from other similar products in the market, “Haizhiyan (/&
2 &) replenishes sodium lost (## &) through perspiration, an
action to fill a niche market. Unique processing technologies and
natural ingredients and flavoured guarantee quality in taste while
establishing technical barriers that prevent copying. With distinctive
package design, brand positioning and taste, the product was
soon accepted and recognised by consumers in beverage market
for its lively quality and originality, bringing new energy into the
juice market during 2014. Following the successful launch of the
lemon flavour, grapefruit flavour and calamansi flavour were also put
into the market under the series, continuously giving new vigor to
“Haizhiyan (782 &) " brand.

In adherence to the motto of “three goods and one fairness: good
quality, good credit, good service and fair price (=Z{f —2R3&:
mE - ERT RET EBERAQB)”, the Group offers safe,
healthy and delicious food products to consumers. To enhance
the level of food safety management system of the Group, a food
safety and health committee and a food safety centre have been
established. The committee and the centre focus their efforts on the
deployment and establishment of a food safety protection system,
the formulation of food safety policies, and the promotion of food
safety risk assessment, precaution and control so as to ensure
food safety. They are responsible for the management of quality
assurance as well as the formulation and implementation of quality
assurance policies, ensuring product quality.
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The Group perfects the control mechanism of supply chain of
raw materials with special focus on the food safety management
of supply chain source and the food safety control of finished
products. The Group implements the food safety qualification audit
on suppliers, food safety site appraisal of suppliers and established
a control system on raw materials food safety projects to ensure
the implementation of food quality safety control at the source
of supply chain. The Group conducts qualification inspection on
production plants and implemented an on-site assessment and
appraisal system. To ensure the safety and deliciousness of our
products, all finished products must pass inspections strictly
according to regulations before putting on the market and, further,
are subject to strict controls on every project of food safety check.

The Group actively enhances the management of suppliers,
formulates standards related to management of pollution-free
vegetable bases. Based on the first open sample factory of pickled
cabbage packets, the Group applied to establish a “National Food
Science Education Base (2 BR®EBI L EEH) ", promoting
general science knowledge in food safety to the public. The Group
actively advances the industry food safety standards by introducing
in a full range food-grade protogenous paper barrels made of virgin
pulp and the world’s leading ozone-free technology for natural
mineral water production to eliminate food safety risks in production
processes, in ensuring the safety and health of consumers.

The Group closely monitors various food safety incidents and
conducts timely risk assessments, carries out inspections on
similar raw materials and finished products and improves food
safety management system to ensure food safety. It also actively
participates in formulating and revising related national standards,
collecting and issuing food regulations and domestic and overseas
information on food safety to boost awareness of food safety,
and facilitating the thorough implementation of food regulations
and safety standards with an aim to safeguard the interests of
consumers.

Since 2005, the Group’s food safety testing centre has passed the
annual expert evaluation organised by China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS Accreditation) and until
now 165 assessments have been granted approval. Combining
with the laboratories of our subsidiaries and external assessment
units, the Group is able to meet the assessment requirements
on the food safety items concerned, providing the Group with
professional and authoritative assessment services and technical
support to ensure safety of the Group’s food products.
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By the end of 2014, 29 subsidiaries of the Group have obtained the
certification of ISO9001 international standard quality management
system and 26 subsidiaries have obtained the certification
of 18022000 international standard food safety management
system. Those certifications and awards require enterprises to
keep improving their food safety and quality assurance systems
and enhancing their capabilities in ensuring food safety. The
certifications also show that the Group offers consumers with not
only delicious products, but also healthy and safe food products.

The Group is committed to its focused strategy of creating brand
value, enabling product R&D and innovation and establishing sales
channels. We are convinced that along with long-term efforts in
building brand image, continuous product innovation and extensive
sales networks are the key to meeting consumer demand and
allowing us to grow and achieve maximum efficiency continuously.
In addition to its own productivity, in light of centralising the usage
of resources for maximum efficiency, the Group has long been
cooperating with professional beverage OEM factories (including
professional OEM manufactures who are external independent third
parties and connected enterprises) to form strategic alliances. As a
result, the Group is equipped with flexibility in terms of productivity
to a certain extent by outsourcing production activities while
maintaining its basic productivity, so that the Group’s resources can
be fully and most efficiently used in key projects.
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total cash and cash
equivalents of RMB1,804.0 million (2013: RMB1,413.9 million),
among which 87.3% were denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2014, the Group had no pledged bank deposit
(2013: RMB5.9 million). Current assets of the Group amounted
to RMB5,088.3 million (2013: RMB4,507.6 million) with current
liabilities of RMB5,720.7 million (2013: RMB5,336.0 million).
Net current liabilities were RMB632.4 million (2013: RMB828.4
million). During the Year, the Group mainly financed its working
capital and capital expenditure by internally generated cash
flows, credit facilities from principal bankers, the fund raised by
issues of corporate bonds and rights shares (as described in
the sub-section headed “Financing” in this annual report below).
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total financial liabilities
was RMB5,836.4 million (2013: RMB6,004.0 million), among
which 73.3% were repayable over one year. 40.8% of the total
financial liabilities was denominated in United States dollars and
the remaining 59.2% was denominated in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2014, all of the Group’s financial liabilities bear floating
interest rates save for the RMB1,000 million notes due 2016, the
RMB1,000 million notes due 2017, the RMB500 million notes
due 2017 and the RMB500 million notes due 2019, which were
at fixed interest rates of 3.5%, 3.6%, 3.5% and 3.9% per annum
respectively. As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
secured bank borrowing (2013: Nil).
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In January 2014, RMB1,000 milion 3.6% notes due 2017 were
issued in Taiwan by the Company by way of debt issue solely to
professional investors. All of the net proceeds (after deducting the
related expenses) have been applied as general working capital of
the Group. The GreTai Securities Market of the Republic of China
has granted approval for the listing of such notes. Unless previously
redeemed or repurchased and cancelled, such notes will be
redeemed at their principal amount on, or nearest to, 23 January
2017.

In June 2014, the Company issued 719,889,000 rights shares
at a subscription price of HK$4.56 per rights share to raise an
aggregate gross proceeds of HK$3,282.7 million. The net proceeds
of HK$3,268.0 million (after deducting the related expenses) were
fully utilised as to HK$28.2 million for the Group’s general working
capital and the remaining amount of HK$3,239.8 million was used
to repay some of its short-term, unsecured bank borrowings. The
Group believed that the net proceeds from the rights issue have
strengthened the Company’s financial structure and the Group, in
turn, becomes more resilient financially.

In August 2014, RMB500 million 3.5% notes due 2017 and
RMB500 million 3.9% notes due 2019 were issued in Taiwan by
the Company by way of debt issue solely to professional investors.
All of the net proceeds (after deducting the related expenses)
have been applied as general working capital of the Group. The
GreTai Securities Market of the Republic of China has granted
approvals for the listing of both notes. Unless previously redeemed
or repurchased and cancelled, such notes will be redeemed at their
principal amount on, or nearest to, 28 August 2017 and 28 August
2019 respectively.
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The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. On
17 January 2014, Taiwan Ratings Corporation (“Taiwan Ratings”), a
credit rating agency, gave a long term credit rating of twAA- to the
Company, with “stable” rating outlook on the Company’s long term
credit rating. On 28 August 2014, the Company also obtained a
long term credit rating of twAA- credit rating from Taiwan Ratings.

20144 20134

AR® TR AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BmiEE Total borrowings 5,836,368 6,003,985
W BEERESEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents (1,804,022) (1,413,929)
BEIEFE Net debt 4,032,346 4,590,056
AR Total equity 10,836,738 8,142,168
HE AR Total capital 14,869,084 12,732,224
EXRGELE () Gearing ratio (Note) 27.12% 36.05%
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Note:  The gearing ratio is computed as the net debt divided by the sum of
total equity and net debt.

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group recorded a net increase in cash and
cash equivalents of RMB389.8 million (excluding exchange gain),
comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB1,411.2
million, net cash inflow from financing activities of RMB2,203.8
million and net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB3,225.3
million. The net cash outflow from investing activities was mainly
applied to the expansion in scale of production, establishment
of new production base for instant noodles and beverage
businesses, and purchase of machinery and equipment for
enhancing production capacity. During the Year, the Group’s capital
expenditure amounted to RMB3,345.7 million (2013: RMB4,746.3
million).
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Sales by the Group to most of its customers are made on a delivery
on payment basis. Our trade receivables are generated from credit
sales to credit customers from modern channels with credit terms
normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. Trade receivables for the Year
decreased by RMB60.7 million to RMB487.4 million. The Group’s
inventories mainly comprised raw materials, packaging materials,
finished goods and low-value consumables. As at 31 December
2014, our inventory balance decreased by RMB384.2 million as
compared to the beginning of the year. The Group’s trade payables
mainly arose from credit purchases of raw materials and packaging
materials, and our trade payables for the Year decreased by
RMB355.8 million as compared to the beginning of the year. The
decrease in inventory balance and trade payables were due to the
decrease in prices of raw materials and adjustments made to the
required stocking of raw materials and packaging materials at the
end of 2014 as the Chinese New Year falls late in 2015.

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended
31 December

2014% 20134
FEUE 5 R A X Trade receivables turnover days 8 8
FEREXH Inventories turnover days 31 33
JERE 5 R EE X Trade payables turnover days 30 33
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The Group’s financial department has formulated financial risk
management policies based on the policies and procedures
approved by the Board and guided by the executive Directors.
These policies are reviewed by the Group’s internal audit
department regularly. The Group’s financial policy aims at reducing
the impact of interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations on the
Group’s overall financial position, as well as minimising the Group’s
financial risk exposure.
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The Group’s financial department has successfully provided cost
effective funding for the Group and its members through the
proactive implementation of centralised financial risk (including
interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow management.
Most of the Group’s functional currency is Renminbi since majority
of its revenues are derived from operations in the PRC. The Group
may expose to foreign exchange risk arise from future borrowings
from overseas and some of its recognised assets or liabilities, such
as cash and cash equivalents and borrowings, part of which are
denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts outside the PRC,
when appropriate, for risk management and to control the Group’s
assets and liabilities when interest or exchange rates are uncertain
or fluctuate, or whenever suitable. Our policy is not to engage
in speculative derivative financial transactions and not to invest
our current capital in financial products with significant underlying
leverage or risk, including hedge funds or similar instruments.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2014.

For 2015, the Group will continue to uphold the long-term interests
of the shareholders, and seek growth from prudent operation. We
will actively adapt to the changing economic environment and keep
abreast of the changing consumer taste, leverage on the benefits
of opportunities emerging and our strength for the continuous
creation of shareholders’ value. The Group will continue to increase
brand building efforts, create brand value with innovation and win
consumers’ recognition by differentiated and trendy products.
Against the backdrop of slower economic growth, the Group
will make more efficient use of its resources in sales channel
development. In terms of food safety, the Group will strictly adhere
to the implementation of the comprehensive quality control to
ensure products meet safety standards in every aspect.
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 36,717 employees. In
view of the huge market opportunities for dairy beverages and
food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously recruiting
talented professionals. It aims at fulfilling the human resources
demand arising from the rapid business and production expansion
by adopting a more prudent and effective approach in the selection
and hiring process. In respect of the new grassroots staff, the
Group devotes considerable resources in staff training and
monitoring their development and progress in a timely manner in
order to familiarise them with the working environment and build
up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group recognises the value of its
key personnel in maintaining team morale and competitiveness.
Both internal promotion and external recruitment are applied
to select and promote top employees for vacant positions and
attract qualified candidates to join the Group. On the other hand,
the Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such as
continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as well as
external on-the-job training.

The emolument policy of the Group is to reward its employees and
directors based on their performance, qualifications, competence
displayed, market comparables and the performance of the Group.
With regard to the Group’s emolument policy, the Group have
entered into separate employment contracts with its employees
regarding the terms on wages and salaries, national allowances,
social security benefits, employee benefits, work place safety and
hygiene environment, confidentiality of commercial secrets and
termination conditions. Apart from those with middle and senior
management officers, the term of the employment contracts
ranges from one to three years. New employees are subject to a
probationary period of two months.

Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) for the Year was
RMB3,028.7 million (2013: RMB3,029.6 million).
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Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales
of beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2014 are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 83 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB1.322 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of RMB57.1 million. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 85 of the annual report and Note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB6,495,741,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB10,010,000 (2013: RMB3,045,700).

#i— ¥ EER AR 2T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng

(retired with effect from 16 May 2014)
Mr. Lin Lung-Yi
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu

Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Hou Jung-
Lung, Mr. Lin Lung-Yi and Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Hou
Jung-Lung, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election. There is
no service contract entered into between Mr. Hou Jung-Lung and
the Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation. Both of Mr. Lin Lung-Yi and
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu have decided to retire and will retire from their
offices at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and will not offer themselves for re-election.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 51 to 55 of
the annual report.
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Exps

Name of Director

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

M2014%

12A31H

ZERBD L

¥ NN Percentage of

ZEREE shareholding

Number of as at

514 ordinary shares 31 December
Capacity of the Company 2014
(BE49)

(Approximate)

Hou Jung-Lung
TR [E
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Beneficial owner 60,000 0.00%

ExmEBAA

#i— ¥ EER AR 2T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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HERR2H A BN
Name of corporation and Personal
name of its relevant shareholder Interest

#Hi— %KM Uni-President
BRAT Enterprises
Corporation*

DINIES Lin Lung-Yi 1,792,190
BEL Lo Chih-Hsien 3,902,976

B bR R & SN FR2014F 128318 » #E
BARREZTRNEIETBABEEF M
RARRBIRFH R EAERGI E35216 E
Fzaafi RBEEETAEMG AR
B R B R BT 2 A AR &) Bk E T ] 4R B A
(EERBEHFRBEEMEXVE) HRD - 48
RO KBEHIERIAR -

RDEE
Number of shares

20145

12A31H

185% ZERBSH®

U Fzs Percentage of
(TR £ shareholding
Interest of NEER as at
child under Corporate #5t 31 December
18 or spouse Interest Total 2014
(#E4)

(Approximate)

1,428,581 - 3,220,771 0.06%
89,598,960 - 93,501,936 1.71%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this Report of the Directors below, none of the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance to
which the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

HaE Long positions
20145
12A31H
ZERES K
RKAF Percentage of
ZBERHAE shareholding
Number of as at
#18 5% ordinary shares 31 December
Name Capacity of the Company 2014
(BE49)
(Approximate)
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* Interest of a controlled 3,045,948,983 70.52%
corporation (Note)
S—ERNDBRAA ZPEHEEE R (BF3E)
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner 3,044,508,000 70.49%
E=mEA A
Bt 5 - Note:

AR A A]3,045,948,983 8% & 17 ([ 1) & & -

3,044,508,0008% f% 19 F Cayman President Holdings
Ltd. ([Cayman President | - i — ¥R H BR A
A(IH—DED 22— REEZ2EWBRR)FAE

1,440,983 I% 15 A President (BVI) International
Investment Holdings Ltd. ([President (BVI)] * 4t
—EEERE.37T%ER L —RAT)IEA -
I BIEFSHRBEG S —ERR A IR
Cayman President ) President BV 5 2 F & B
AR -

Br Bt 3 5 & SN R2014F 128318 @ &
HthE BRI A TR AR B %17 sk 48 BE A%
DHEEEZIAE  THEBERBREBEELFR
HEIRAIEI36H(FEMN LML

Out of 3,045,948,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”), 3,044,508,000
Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (“Cayman President”),
which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation* (“UPE”) and 1,440,983 Shares were held by President
(BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd. (“President (BVI)”), which is
indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%. Accordingly, UPE was deemed to
be interested in all the Shares respectively held by Cayman President and
President (BVI) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

#— P EZ R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and “Other Connected Transactions” of this Report
of the Directors, (i) no contract of significance was entered into by,
and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during
the Year; and (i) there is no contract of significance in relation to
provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not exempt under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

During the Year, the Group has sold, on a non-exclusive
basis, certain beverage, instant noodles and bakery products
to UPE Group pursuant to a framework sales agreement
dated 30 March 2012 (the “Framework Sales Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and UPE, details of
which were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 30 March 2012 and 17 May 2012 and the circular of
the Company dated 25 April 2012. The sales transactions
conducted under the Framework Sales Agreement were
made at prices no less than the market prices of which the
Group has sold to independent third parties in accordance
with the pricing terms contained therein. The Framework
Sales Agreement expired on 31 December 2014.

To cater for the continual demand of the Group’s products
from UPE Group, on 24 October 2014, the Company entered
into a new framework sales agreement (the “New Framework
Sales Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell or procure sell of, on a non-exclusive basis,
to UPE Group certain beverage, instant noodles and bakery
products and such other products as may be agreed by
the Group and UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2017. The pricing basis and the other
terms of the sales transactions contemplated under the
New Framework Sales Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the New Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.
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During the Year, the Group has purchased, on a non-
exclusive basis, certain raw materials, packaging materials
and finished goods etc. from UPE Group pursuant to a
framework purchase agreement dated 28 March 2013 (the
“Framework Purchase Agreement”) entered into between
the Company and UPE, details of which were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 28 March 2013
and 14 May 2013 and the circular of the Company dated
26 April 2013. The purchase transactions conducted under
the Framework Purchase Agreement were made at prices no
more than the market prices which the Group obtained from
independent third parties in accordance with the pricing terms
contained therein. The Framework Purchase Agreement
expired on 31 December 2014.

Foreseeing the continual demand of the Group of the
purchase transactions, on 24 October 2014, the Company
entered into a new framework purchase agreement (the
“New Framework Purchase Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to purchase or procure the
purchase of, on a non-exclusive basis, from UPE Group
certain raw materials, packaging materials, finished goods,
low-cost consumables and such other goods as may
be agreed by the Group and UPE Group for a term from
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. The pricing basis and
the other terms of the purchase transactions contemplated
under the New Framework Purchase Agreement shall be
subject to the terms and conditions contained therein
and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered to the Group by
independent third parties in comparable transactions of the
same period. Further details of the New Framework Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 24 October 2014, 23 December 2014 and
the circular of the Company dated 5 December 2014.
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During the Year, the Group has received from, on a non-
exclusive basis, certain transportation and logistics services
from UPE Group pursuant to a framework logistics service
agreement dated 28 March 2013 (the “Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) entered into between the Company and
UPE, details of which were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 March 2013. The transactions
conducted under the Framework Logistics Service Agreement
were made at prices no less favourable than prices available
from independent third parties to the Group in accordance
with the pricing terms contained therein. The Framework
Logistics Service Agreement expired on 31 December 2014.

Considering the continual needs of the Group of the
transportation and logistics services, on 24 October 2014,
the Company entered into a new framework logistics
service agreement (the “New Framework Logistics Service
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed to
provide or procure the provision of, on a non-exclusive basis,
to the Group transportation and logistics service (including,
but not limited to, storage and design of, and the provision
of support service to, logistics application systems and such
other logistics related ancillary and support services as may
be agreed by the Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2017. The pricing basis and
the other terms of the transportation and logistics service
transactions contemplated under the New Framework
Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein and determined in accordance
with the internal control procedures of the Group, which, in
principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group than those
offered by independent third parties suppliers to the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further
details of the New Framework Logistics Service Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
24 October 2014.
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During the Year, the Group has provided to UPE Group, on
a non-exclusive basis, certain technical support services
pursuant to a framework technical support service agreement
dated 28 March 2013 (the “Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement”) entered into between the Company and
UPE, details of which were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 March 2013. The transactions
conducted under the Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement were made at prices no less than the market
prices at which the Company offered to independent third
parties in accordance with the pricing terms contained
therein. The Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
expired on 31 December 2014.

In view of the continual demand from UPE Group of the
Group’s technical support services, on 24 October 2014,
the Company entered into a new framework technical
support service agreement (the “New Framework Technical
Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to provide or procure the provision of,
on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group technical support
services (including, but not limited to, the human resources
management services and such other technical support
services as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group)
for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. The
pricing basis and the other terms of the technical support
service transactions contemplated under the New Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the New Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
24 October 2014.
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The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap”)
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
aggregate annual transaction value actually recorded
pursuant to the Framework Sales Agreement, the Framework
Purchase Agreement, the Framework Logistics Service
Agreement and the Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement (collectively, “CCT Agreements”) for the Year are
set out below:

BERSE
Actual
x5 BEREXZ R transaction FELR
Transaction CCT Agreements amount Annual Cap
(ANRBBHET) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
ERHE ik Framework Sales Agreement
BIHEEE Total sales value 241.7 845.0
ERKE W Framework Purchase Agreement
BIRBEE Total purchase value 3,242.6 11,200.0
HEZR YR R 75 16 o Framework Logistics Service Agreement
R HEE Total transaction value 7.1 40.0
ERRM RIS W= Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
B H5EE Total transaction value 42.9 120.0
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
above transactions pursuant to the CCT Agreements were
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the relevant CCT Agreements and the pricing policies
of the Company, and on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Group and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the
Listing Rules 14A.56.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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Details of the other connected transactions entered into by the
Group with UPE Group during the Year and which are not exempt
under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

On 24 October 2014, Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co.,
Ltd.* (A& Z — D E R MAR A F) (“Chengdu President”) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Sichuan Ton-Yi Industrial
Co., Ltd* (WIS EREBR AR (“Sichuan Ton-Yi") pursuant
to which Chengdu President, as vendor, has disposed of, and
Sichuan Ton-Yi, as purchaser, has acquired the machinery and
equipment which are mainly for use by the production lines of
beverage products, ancillary office and warehousing equipment at
the consideration of RMB300 million (before any tax adjustments (if
any)) (the “Chengdu Transaction”).

On 24 October 2014, Zhanjiang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.”
CET#— %A 2AA)) (“Zhanjiang President”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) also entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Zhanjiang Ton-Yi Industrial Co.,
Ltd.* CEI A E R ZBR QA (“Zhanjiang Ton-Yi”) pursuant
to which Zhanjiang President, as vendor, has disposed of, and
Zhanjiang Ton-Yi, as purchaser, has acquired the machinery and
equipment which are mainly for use by the production lines of
beverage products, ancillary office and warehousing equipment at
the consideration of RMB220 million (before any tax adjustments (if
any)) (the “Zhanjiang Transaction”).

As each of Sichuan Ton-Yi and Zhanjiang Ton-Yi is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Ton Vi Industrial Corp.* (45— & 2%
BB AT, in which UPE is interested in 30% or more of the
voting power, each of Sichuan Ton-Yi and Zhanjiang Ton-Yi is an
associate of UPE and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Chengdu Transaction and
the Zhanjiang Transaction constituted connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Both of the Chengdu Transaction and the Zhanjiang Transaction
can reduce the on-going capital expenditure in respect of the
machinery and equipment under sale (the “Sale Machinery and
Equipment”) and thus enable the Group to use more efficiently of its
resources which would otherwise be required for self-operation of
the Sale Machinery and Equipment by focusing on brand building
and product development. Following completion, the Group has
also made outsourcing arrangements with UPE Group for the
manufacturing of the Group’s products by the Sale Machinery
and Equipment. Accordingly, the Chengdu Transaction and the
Zhanjiang Transaction were part of the strategic move of the Group
for the implementation of its parallel strategy of self-production and
manufacturing outsourcing.

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 39(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 39(b) and Note
39(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered between the Company and UPE
on 23 November 2007.
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During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23 November 2007.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to employees, directors
or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies
or associated companies of the Company which the Board
determines will be subject to the Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
under the Scheme must not exceed 352,681,000 shares of
the Company, representing 10% of the total number of shares
issued by the Company as at 17 December 2007 (i.e. the listing
date of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange) and
approximately 8.17% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the annual report. Unless approved by shareholders
of the Company in the manner as set out in the Scheme, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options to granted to each eligible person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant of the
option.

The exercise price shall be the price determined by the Board and
notified to the option holder which shall not be less than being
the highest of: (a) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets; (b) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet of the shares on the date of grant of the option; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company. No amount will be
payable for the acceptance of an option.
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Unless otherwise specified by the Board in the offer, the options
granted under the Scheme shall generally be vested in five
tranches with each of the 20% of the options vested on the first,
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversary dates of the date of grant
respectively. An option may be exercised to the extent that it has
vested and any performance conditions or targets set by the Board
have been met. The option period will not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant.

As at 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014, there was no
outstanding share option. No share option has been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. The Scheme
will remain in force until 16 December 2017 unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with the management
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements for the Year and has recommended their adoption by
the Board.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

(i)

Facility Agreements dated 18 July 2012

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
27 July 2012, on 18 July 2012, the Company (as borrower)
entered into two facility agreements with two syndicates
of banks, respectively in respect of (i) a revolving facility for
US$170 million (the “USD Agreement”) with the drawdown
period of five years from the date of first drawdown i.e. to
be expired on 23 August 2017 and (i) a revolving facility for
RMB1,000 million (the “RMB Agreement”, together with the
USD Agreement, “July 2012 Facility Agreements”) with the
original drawdown period of three years from the date of
first drawdown. During the Year, the entire facility under the
RMB Agreement has been cancelled upon the request by the
Company.

Pursuant to the July 2012 Facility Agreements, UPE has
executed a letter of support (the “Letter of Support”) in which
it undertook to the banks that, among others, it should,
directly or indirectly, hold not less than 51% of the issued
share capital of the Company during the continuance of the
July 2012 Facility Agreements. Under the July 2012 Facility
Agreements, the Company has also undertaken to ensure
that UPE shall, directly or indirectly, hold not less than 51%
of the issued share capital of the Company during the
continuance of the July 2012 Facility Agreements.

#— P EZ R AR A R Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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A breach of the undertakings in the Letter of Support or any
of the undertakings given by the Company under the July
2012 Facility Agreements may constitute an event of default
of the July 2012 Facility Agreements and the lenders of each
of the July 2012 Facility Agreements has the right to terminate
the July 2012 Facility Agreements and all loans together with
accrued interest and any other amounts accrued under the
July 2012 Facility Agreements shall become immediately due
and payable.

Facility Agreement dated 15 August 2012 (as
amended by the agreements dated 12 August 2013
and 12 August 2014)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 August 2012, on 15 August 2012, the Company (as
borrower) entered into a facility agreement (the “August
2012 Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving facility in
an aggregate amount of US$30 million (the “August 2012
Facility”) with a syndicate of banks. The original maturity date
of the August 2012 Facility was the date falling 365 days after
the date of the August 2012 Facility Agreement. As disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 12 August
2018 and 12 August 2014, the Company (as borrower)
entered into amendment agreements (the “Amendment
Agreements”) to the August 2012 Facility Agreement with
the original parties thereto and pursuant to which, among
other matters, (i) the maturity date of the August 2012 Facility
Agreement has been extended to 15 August 2015; and (i) the
amount of the August 2012 Facility has been increased from
US$30 million to US$50 million.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The August 2012 Facility Agreement (as amended by the
Amendment Agreements) provides, among others, that a
change in control will occur if UPE ceases to own at least
51% of the issued paid up capital of the Company or maintain
control of the Company. In the event of such a change in
control which will also constitute an event of default, the
lenders of the August 2012 Facility Agreement (as amended
by the Amendment Agreements) have the right to cancel
the August 2012 Facility (as amended by the Amendment
Agreements) and the loans together with all accrued interest
and all other amounts accrued under the August 2012 Facility
Agreement (as amended by the Amendment Agreements) will
become immediately due and payable.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
7 June 2013, on 3 June 2013, the Company (as borrower)
entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks
(the “June 2013 Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving
facility in an aggregate amount of US$200 million with the
original drawdown period of five years from the date of first
drawdown.

Under the June 2013 Facility Agreement, the Company has
undertaken to ensure that UPE shall, directly or indirectly, hold
not less than 51% of the issued share capital of the Company
during the continuance of the June 2013 Facility Agreement.

A breach of such undertaking by the Company under the
June 2013 Facility Agreement may constitute an event of
default and the lenders of the June 2013 Facility Agreement
has the right to terminate the June 2013 Facility Agreement
and all loans together with accrued interest and any other
amounts accrued under the June 2013 Facility Agreement
shall become immediately due and payable.
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RAFE  2013F6 A mE Hm N During the Year, the entire facility under the June 2013 Facility
HRECRARG ERKTEHE - Agreement has been cancelled upon the request by the
Company.
RREFE On behalf of the Board
Z—LETEERERAA Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
*E Lo Chih-Hsien
BEX Chairman
= RE=5'1 Taipei, Taiwan
2015%3H17H 17 March 2015
* BRI * For identification purpose only
50 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (&% %), aged 58, is our chairman and
executive director. Mr. Lo is also a director and/or the chairman of
the board of directors of most of the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in September 1998 and
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and management
of the Group. He has over 29 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry and is currently a chairman of President Chain
Store Corporation (£t —HBE KB AR A F), Ton Vi Industrial
Corp. (Fi—BERKMHBEMRZAE]) and TTET Union Corporation ( X
S AR AT, and the vice-chairman of Prince Housing &
Development Corp. ( K FEFZRFMERMDBRAF), al of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also a
director of ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. ( & /& E DB R A7) and
Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (B F1TIRHER AR, a
company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also

the chairman and general manager of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation (# — 1t Z & H B R A7) (‘UPE"), the substantial
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)), and a
director of 117 companies associated with UPE and its subsidiaries
(excluding the Group) (collectively, “UPE Group”). Mr. Lo holds a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
California, Los Angeles, U.S.A. He is the son-in-law of Mr. Kao
Chin-Yen who is the honorary chairman of UPE.

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (&% ) , aged 50, was appointed as our
president and executive director in September 2011. Mr. Hou is
also a director and/or the general manager of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hou joined UPE Group
in February 1993 and has acted as manager of a branch of
Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp. (BM & — 2 AR A
7)), deputy general manager and head of sales department of
Zhuhai Kirin President Brewery Co., Ltd. (Zk/& B4 — 2B A
R2d]), general manager of Beijing President Enterprises Drinks
Co., Ltd. (dt =& — & AR 2 F)) and head of human resources
and general manager of the market planning office of Uni-President
PE(PE)KRESR

[RAA]). Mr. Hou has over 22 years of experience in the food

Enterprises (China) Investments Ltd. (%5 —

and beverage industry and holds a master’s degree in executive
business administration from Tsinghua University in Beijing, China.
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Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREl/&) , aged 46, is our executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in May 2011. Mr. Chen also acts as a director and/or
supervisor of all of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in the
PRC. Mr. Chen is also the supervisor of United Advisor Venture
Management Co., Ltd. (# /N TXE R ERRIFIREEBRHBRAF)
and Min Fu Management Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (R E
B (E8)BMHRAF]) and a director of Yantai Tongli Beverage
Industries Co., Ltd. (E&HFEE TEHBR A A, where the
Group holds 50% interests in the above named companies, and a
director of Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Co., Ltd. ( 2#E/I%4 7
ZEINIERMDAERAT), a company in which the Group has an
interest. Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from November 1997 to April
2011 and has over 18 years of experience in financial management.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administrative from
University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.

Mr. LIN Lung-Yi (#[£% ) , aged 71, is our non-executive director.
Mr. Lin joined the Group in December 1991. He joined UPE Group
since March 1971. He is currently a director of President Chain
Store Corporation (£t —iEBE RN ABR AR ), ScinoPharm Taiwan.,
Ltd. (& &mBEMD AR A7) and Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (i —&
2D ABR AT, all of which are members of UPE Group and are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Lin holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and statistics from National Cheng
Kung University.
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Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (#:5284) , aged 57, is our non-executive
director. Mr. Su joined the Group in August 2007. He joined UPE
Group in August 2000. He is currently the vice-president of UPE
and a director of President Chain Store Corporation ( £ — %
f% 15 A BR A &) and Scino Pharm Corp. (& &8 R 7D B R A
Al) , all of which are members of UPE Group and are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. Mr. Su is also a director of
26 members of UPE Group. He has over 29 years of experience in
banking and financial management. Before joining UPE Group, he
was the vice-president of the Taipei branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was
the financial specialist of Seibu Department Store in Tokyo, Japan
in 1988 and the senior specialist of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in
Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a master of business administration
degree from the University of lowa.

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te ([REE{®), aged 60, was appointed as our
independent non-executive director in August 2007. Mr. Chen
has over 31 years of experience in the banking and financial
industry and is currently the Chairman of Zoyi Capital Ltd. He is
also an independent director of China Telecom Corporation, China
Electronics Corporation, and Lion Travel Services Co., Ltd. Prior
to that, Mr. Chen served as the president of Fullerton Financial
Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater China regions) between
2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (now known as CTBC Financial Holding Co., Ltd) in 2005,
the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd. between 2003 and
2005, the country officer and country head of the corporate bank in
Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and 2003 and the regional head
of financial markets in Asia Pacific of Citigroup between 1998 and
2001. He gained extensive financial management experience from
various positions held with Citibank and Citigroup and has acquired
general knowledge about the food and beverage industry through
dealing with clients from that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from University of Missouri and
a bachelor’s degree in political science from National Chengchi
University.
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Mr. FAN Ren Da, Anthony (S8{°# ), aged 54, was appointed
as our independent non-executive director in August 2007. Mr. Fan
is the chairman and managing director of Asialink Capital Limited
and also an independent non-executive director of Technovator
International Limited (Stock Code: 1206), Raymond Industrial
Limited (Stock Code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited (Stock Code: 563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), China Development
Bank International Investment Limited (Stock Code: 1062), Hong
Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882),
LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 112), Neo-Neon
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1868) and CGN Meiya Power
Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1811), all of which are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Fan
holds a master’s degree in business administration from the United
States.

Mr. YANG Ing-Wuu (52 E ) , aged 69, was appointed as
our independent non-executive director in November 2007.
Mr. Yang is currently the secretary general of Taiwan Vegetable Oil
BEEEYHERIERELE
and the executive counsel of Guangda Cereals Joint Stock Limited
Company ( X KB H BRAF]) . Prior to that, he was the
executive director of Taiwan Soya Bean Importers Joint Committee
BERENIZTIHATIELZE®), the chairman of the board
of Huanguo International Trade Company (BREBEERE 51 7)),
the secretary general of General Chamber of Commerce of Taiwan,

Manufacturers Association

the secretary general of China Food Industry Competitiveness
Enhancement Association (2R BEXHEF XKL E) and a
part-time lecturer at Chihlee Institute of Technology and Shih Hsin
University. Mr. Yang has over 39 years of experience in the food
industry. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor’s and a master’s degree in law
from National Chengchi University.
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Mr. LO Peter (] % £), aged 59, was appointed as our
independent non-executive director in November 2007. Mr. Lo is
currently a director of China Enterprise Capital Limited. He is also
the chairman and an executive director of China Outfitters Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1146) and an independent non-executive
director of Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 538), both
of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He resigned as Chairman and a non-executive
director from Sino Distillery Group Limited (formerly known as Bio-
Dynamic Group Limited) (Stock Code: 0039) on 8 May 2013.
Mr. Lo has over 21 years of experience in the business fields
and holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematical economics and
econometrics from the London School of Economics and Political
Science.
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Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (&2 ), aged 50, is our president and
executive director. The day-to-day operations of the Group and
implementation of the strategy and direction set by the Board are
delegated to the management team of the Company which is led
by Mr. Hou. Mr. Hou’s biographical details are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ profile” of the annual report.

Mr. Zhang Ling (3Rf%) , aged 46, joined our Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(BE#H—1EBRAR), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. (ESH— 1% EFBRAR]) , Wuhan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (MEH—DERMBARAF]) . In January 2010, Mr.
Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food Department of
the Group. In October 2014, Mr. Zhang was appointed as General
Manger of Instant Food Department of the Group. Mr. Zhang has
over 20 years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology,
Hankou with a bachelor degree of engineering. He participated in
various training programs in the marketing area.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (## 5 &), aged 38, joined our Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (BIUZE— ¥ B RARER
Al) from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as
the head of bottled water department of the Group since October
2006. He has been the head of the combined drink products
business of the Group since October 2014. He has more than 16
years of experience in the food and beverage industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University.
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Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (28 (), aged 46, joined the food
product business (Taiwan) of UPE and our Group in 1999 and 2003
respectively. Prior to 2010, Mr. Wei served as product manager
of food product business, combined drink products business
and juice business and as manager of the investment planning
unit. In 2010, he served in the PL (Private Label) OEM business
new business unit. In 2011, he was transferred to a subsidiary,
Uni-President (Shanghai) Private Label Marketing & Trading Co.,
Ltd., as general manager. In 2012, he was the general manager of
our trading business unit. He has been the general manager of juice
business of the Group since 2013. He has more than 21 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Wei graduated
from Drexel University in Pennsylvania, U.S.A. (EEENSEEAE)
with a master’s degree in business administration.

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (% I 25
President Enterprises Corp. (&M 4 —

, aged 42, joined Guangzhou
TEERQA), a
subsidiary of our Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for
the management of marketing functions of Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. ([ EM & — 1% BB A F]) and Wuhan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (REH —CEXBRMBARAA),
subsidiaries of our group, prior to October 2011. She was re-
designated as the deputy general manager of the head office of our
Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was appointed as the
general manager of the head office of our Group’s tea business in
July 2013. Before joining our Group, she has engaged in marketing
in various companies such as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch,
Ting Hsin International Group (TEFTEIFR &£ E ) and YFY (k&
&) and has 18 years of experience in relation to the food and fast
moving consumer goods industries. In 2006, she started to work
in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan Foods Corporation
(K2RBIERMAR AT of Ting Hsin International Group (T8
FEFREE) and has since gained 9 years of work experience in
the Mainland. Ms. Chen holds both master’s degree in nutrition and
health sciences from Taipei Medical University in Taiwan and EMBA
program (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s National Chung Hsing University.

Annual Report 2014 F#§
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Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (Bl /&) , aged 46, is our executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Chen'’s biographical
details are set out in the section of the headed “Directors’ Profile” of
the annual report.

Company Secretary

Mr. PANG Ka-Fai Angus (X ##), aged 45, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Pang has previously served the
Company from February 2008 to April 2014 and rejoined the
Company since September 2014. Mr. Pang is a director of Gowise
Corporate Services Limited. He has 23 years of experience in
financial management and corporate secretarial work. He holds
a master’s degree of Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accounting, and is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Corporate Governance Report

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices and
procedures and appreciates that good corporate governance is
crucial to enhancing investors’ confidence in the Company. In the
opinion of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, the Company has complied with all code provisions
of the corporate governance code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended
31 December 2014 (the “Year”), except for the deviation as
disclosed below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least
annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present. As
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, the Chairman of the Board, is also an executive
Director, the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is
not applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President)
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (retired with effect from 16 May 2014)
Mr. Lin Lung-Yi
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu

Mr. Lo Peter

5 — ¥ EE R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the first general meeting of the Company after the appointment. In
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), at each annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”), one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. The Directors’ remunerations are
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and

experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term business
objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor and control
the operating, management and financial performance of the
There
are currently four committees established under the Board, being

Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the investment,
strategy and development committee (the “Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee”). Each committee has its terms of

reference and reports to the Board regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the President. The roles of the Chairman
of the Board and President of the Company are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties properly and
ensuring discussions on material matters take place on a timely
basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-day operations
and implementation of the strategies and directions set by the
Board are delegated to the management team of the Company (the
“Management”) which is led by the President. The Management
assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the
Group.
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During the Year, the Company held seven Board meetings. The
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings during
the Year is set out below:

LEEBRRE ER8E
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

BiTES Executive Directors

BEREE () Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 7/7

R (HEAEHE) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (President) 6/7

BREIE L& (A FHR) Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer) 7/7

EBMITESE Non-Executive Directors

MEEEE (M) Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (Note) 3/3

MEELE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi 3/7
BRIt Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 7/7

B IEHITESE Independent Non-executive Directors

PREEfESE A Mr. Chen Sun-Te 7/7
CESAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 7/7

TE' R LA Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 7/7

KRELE Mr. Lo Peter 6/7

Mer: MEBEBAEKENR2014F5 816 A EBEIEH  Note: Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng retired as a non-executive Director with effect

TEZEZE RAFERLFERBIRE
RETHRBETZEFEERUAET -

EEEZTLBE

AR —EBERKREAEFEREXERERER
KFEZLEER ULRRRALEEEZSK
BZ b2t - A2013F6 A EEE RN
EECZbBE NBTFOEERTIR
2013FOA1HBRAM CHFRIKE -EFE
ZIALBRRER AR BB R A &R -

from 16 May 2014. His attendance during the Year was made by
reference to the number of the board meetings held during his tenure.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the Board. In June 2013, the Board adopted a Board Diversity
Policy to comply with a new code provision of the Corporate
Governance Code which was effective from 1 September 2013.
The Board Diversity Policy is available on the website of the
Company.

5 — ¥ EE R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience, cultural
and educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the
Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains
a core of members with longstanding knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
process for the nomination of Directors is led by the Nomination
Committee, which has been made on a merit basis. The Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness. The names of the current Directors
and their biographies (including their role as well as their skills and
experience) are set out on pages 51 to 55 of the annual report.

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of required number of
independent non-executive Directors which shall be at least one-
third of the Board with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board
considers each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule
3.18.
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During the Year and up to 16 May 2014, the Remuneration
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu; and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng. Following the
change of Board composition of the Company on 16 May 2014,
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, an executive Director, was appointed as
a member of the Remuneration Committee in replacement of
Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Chen Sun-Te.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year. A
summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors; and

(i)  reviewed the current level and remuneration structure/

package and approved the specific remuneration package of
the executive Directors.

Annual Report 2014 F#§
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Committee meetings during the Year is set out below:

LEEBAE 2RHE
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings

PREBI®ESCA (/) Mr. Chen Sun-Te (Chairman) 2/2
‘mE & HE (Ha2) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Note 2) 2/2
WEHE S E (KTEES) Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (Note 3) 0/0
BRI E Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu 2/2
B 5 - Notes:

M
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T o

BE G EEN2014F5 16 HREESR T A
MEZEEKE -

WA A A R2014F5 516 B #2785 A& # B
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Attendances of the members of the Remuneration Committee during
the Year were made by reference to the number of such meetings
held during their respective tenures.

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 16 May 2014.

Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 16 May 2014.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
and Mr. Lo Peter, who are both independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is an executive Director. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members of the Board, assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board, or select individual nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint of Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
and the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company requires to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The nomination procedure
basically follows the Articles of Association, which empowers the
Board from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The Nomination Committee will base on objective criteria
with due regard to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company, to identify and recommend the
proposed candidate(s) to the Board for approval of appointment(s),
and where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, his/her independence will be
assessed in accordance with, among others, the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/
she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filing the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to review the composition and structure of the Board. The
Nomination Committee also nominated and recommended for the
re-appointment of Mr. Hou Jung-Lung as an executive Director
with effect immediately following the expiry of the services contract
dated 8 September 2011 and entered into between the Company
and Mr. Hou Jung-Lung for a further term of office of three years

PARFEHFIREEZESSH 2 8kE&5 a0 from 8 September 2014 to 7 September 2017, of which the
D nomination was accepted by the Board. The attendance record
of each member at the Nomination Committee meeting during the
Year is set out below:
REZBEHE HEEBARE ER¥E
Member of the Number of meetings attended/
Nomination Committee number of meetings
SBIESE (FE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 2/2
BRELE Mr. Lo Peter 2/2
mERTE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 2/2
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The Board also established an Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee. During the Year and up to 16 May
2014, the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Hou Jung-Lung who are
executive Directors, Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng, who is a non-executive
Director, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo
Peter, who are independent non-executive Directors. Following the
change of Board composition of the Company on 16 May 2014,
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, a non-executive Director, was appointed as a
member of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
in replacement of Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng. The Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.
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BEXRKE (LE) M.
RERE Mr.
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PREEfESEAE Mr.
BRREE M.
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The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held four
meetings during the Year. The attendance record of each member
at the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee meetings
during the Year is set out below:

HESBRE A (K1)
Number of meetings attended/
number of meetings (Note 1)

Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) 4/4
Hou Jung-Lung 4/4
Lin Chang-Sheng (Note 2) 0/1
Su Tsung-Ming (Note 3) 3/3
Chen Sun-Te 4/4
Yang Ing-Wuu 3/4
Lo Peter 4/4
Notes:

(1)  Attendances of the members of the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee during the Year were made by reference to
the number of such meetings held during their respective tenures.

(2)  Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng ceased to be a member of the Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee with effect from 16 May 2014.

t©)] Mr. Su Tsung-Ming was appointed as a member of the Investment,
Strategy and Development Committee with effect from 16 May 2014.
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The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony,
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Lo Peter, who are independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Lin Lung-Yi, who is a non-executive Director. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the annual and interim financial statements and the effectiveness
of the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of work
performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual and interim financial statements for the Year and
for the six months ended 30 June 2014 respectively;

(i) met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

(ivy conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

(v) approved the audit plan for the year ended 31 December
2015; and
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(vi) G ET INEEAZ A 2 B M HEESNEE (vi)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
Z B 2 RS R gk ANIE AR AT 2 B TR engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
MEFGREERZ- Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors.

BERERANFEHREXLZESEE 7 The attendance record of each member at the Audit Committee

R lp N meetings during the Year is set out below:

HEEBRY SFHE
EREZEEEHE Number of meetings attended/
Member of the Audit Committee number of meetings
SBICESRE (EE) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Chairman) 3/3
PREE[EIHE Mr. Chen Sun-Te 3/3
N e Mr. Lin Lung-Yi 2/3
WEEkE Mr. Lo Peter 3/3
= &N E BB H N REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NAERE  REBEEMMUZSREREERKE  During the Year, the remuneration payable to the four members
(BEBRINFMN TARE1I0BETEA  of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group

RE15BE L ranged from RMB1.0 million to RMB1.5 million.
% — > ¥ BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 69
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectively and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standard. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is independent and have
recommended the Board to reappoint it as the external auditors
of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the total remuneration paid/
payable to all external auditors engaged by the Group for their audit
services amounted to RMB6.8 million (including RMB5.3 million
paid/payable to PwC). No significant remuneration was paid to
PwC for the provision of non-audit related service to the Company
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company Secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



EEXHREXREE

ARBBAERHERESNIEIALHENE
HES ZREFCEGTABIRESZ
A BERET ERNEFZHBERE
ER RERBEEERAEEEK ZEIM
BomMEBEFCERHABLDRAZ&IOE
RREMEAEERTE BAREWLRAE
BREGCEEARAZAB -EFTECHTE
—ERF BREFTVRLAEEREEE
BATEABLEXER BRAMAARRA
EE -EREEARSFCEREEERTAA
FAEFHIZTARXAGLE RNAFE 2
MATEFC2EBEFTERRE HFEW
g/ NMERER LB EATER ZMH
DA R BT 2 A R ge - SLmAR
i

BExps

Name of Directors

TERERBE
Corporate Governance Report

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of
the current Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.

FRBEEIEE (M)
Topics on training covered (Note)

BEREE(FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) a
FEE I E Mr. Hou Jung-Lung ac
eR I A 5 A Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a
MEELE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi a,c
BRI E Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a, b
PREEfESL A Mr. Chen Sun-Te a, b
BICERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b
CENEW s Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu a
KEE%iE Mr. Lo Peter a
Bt 5T Note:

() corporate governance/regulatory
(b)  finance

(c) industry-specific

#— P EZ R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions during the Year and
up to the date of the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a healthy and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the Year, through discussions
with our management, the internal audit team and external auditors
and with reference to a report submitted by the internal audit
team, the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions
under the authority of the Board and the guidance of the Audit
Committee. It regularly reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board for its audit findings and recommendations on internal
control.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
To be cost-effective and to ensure the quality of the audit and the
completion of the audit as scheduled, the internal audit was also
carried out with the help of computer systems. Until now, nothing
has been found which requires substantial improvement.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and, if appropriate, press releases
of the Company providing updated information of the Group;
and (jii) the availability of latest information of the Group at the
Company’s website.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, there were two general
meetings held. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Fan Ren-
Da, Anthony, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu and Mr. Lo Peter, were present and
available to answer questions raised by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM held on 16 May 2014.

During the Year, the EGM was held on 23 December 2014
for approving, among others, certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Company and the estimated
maximum aggregate annual transaction values for the years
commencing 1 January 2015 and ending on 31 December 2017,
details of the same have been disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 24 October 2014 and 23 December 2014 and
the circular of the Company dated 5 December 2014. In addition
to the two executive Directors (namely, Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr.
Chen Kuo-Hui) present at the EGM, the two independent non-
executive Directors present at the EGM (namely, Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu
and Mr. Lo Peter) were available to answer questions raised by the
independent shareholders of the Company.

Annual Report 2014 F#§
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong written requisition specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as at the
date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s) hold
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at a general meeting of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852 2893 1150.

— e EHEZER B R 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do
so, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above
and specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional
documents.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out on page 77
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the Company Secretary is currently performed by
Mr. Pang Ka Fai, Angus (“Mr. Pang”) who rejoined the Company
on 26 September 2014 following his resignation from the same
position with effect from 2 April 2014. Upon the resignation of
Mr. Pang, Ms. Mok Ming Wai (“Ms. Mok”) has been engaged by the
Company as the Company Secretary for the period commencing
2 April 2014 until her resignation with effect from 26 September
2014. Both of Ms. Mok and Mr. Pang served/is serving as an
external service provider to the Company and the primary contact
person of the Company with Ms. Mok and Mr. Pang is Mr. Chen
Kuo-Hui, the executive Director and the chief financial officer of the
Company.

76 #i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 224, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

ARIC KA Tl BT B P > B IR R 1 —

Bt : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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B Rk K 1
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2015



&E

FRBEE

T e PR

E RN NN g
BEME

BVEE
BEREARNKRE

AfHESREE
BEFFSTHEE
Hofth & Y 5k IE — FERN R AR o>

RBEE

3

&L 5 B 3R

BNRE-RE R
Hfth & Y5k IR

BAVEEBBRSELKRZ
TREE
EEMIRITER
EHIER

RAekReEEY

HEE

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Land use rights

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using
the equity method

Available-for-sale financial assets

Deferred income tax assets

Other receivables — non-current
portion

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Pledged bank deposits

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

M2014412 31 H As at 31 December 2014

B 5
Note

© o ~N O

13
14

18

16
17

18

19
20
20
20

2014
AR®T R
RMB’000

2,150,679
11,641,653
242,439
28,614

1,545,708
192,809
321,881

52,283

16,176,066

1,129,306
487,418

1,256,788
86,710

324,099
1,804,022

5,088,343

21,264,409

2013
ARBTT
RMB’000

2,113,888
10,185,899
249,365
16,571

1,500,116
192,026
191,718

10,627

14,460,210

1,513,612
548,101

1,026,099

5,941

1,413,929

4,607,582

18,967,792
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M201412 31 H As at 31 December 2014

R

ERREBFEA
PE{h s

L@

Pt 3 (B B

H Al R 1

—BR A% B

—HAh

HREs

a1
ERB AR
1 8

e

[ 1 2008 — FEEDEI D

REBEE

BN E SRR TR

H A AR ERTE R
fBE

=) Hﬂ FristiaE Current income tax liabilities
TESRIT A Derivative financial instruments
wes Total liabilities
ERREEHAE Total equity and liabilities
RBEEFEE Net current liabilities
WEERRBARE Total assets less current liabilities
EE %
LO Chih-Hsien
HITEZE

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Share premium account

Other reserves

— Proposed dividends

— Others

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liability

Borrowings

Other payables — non-current
portion

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Borrowings

Executive Director

FB88E224H Z M B AR A M BHRE 2 —

#ae
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ig=2
Note

21
21
22
35

14
25

24

23
24
25

26

2014
AR®T R
RMB’000

39,764
4,829,899

57,107
5,909,968

10,836,738

188,845
4,280,095

237,985

4,706,925

1,054,204
3,026,862
1,556,273
83,093
314

5,720,746

10,427,671

21,264,409

(632,403)

15,543,663

R fE

HOU Jung-Lung

HITEE

Executive Director

consolidated financial statements.

2013
ARETT
RMB’000

34,047
2,243,980

183,282
5,680,859

8,142,168

156,989
5,101,644

230,971

5,489,604

1,409,968
2,914,704
902,341
65,733
43,274

5,336,020

10,825,624

18,967,792

(828,438)

13,631,772

The notes on pages 88 to 224 are an integral part of these



NAIEEE/ER
Company Balance Sheet
7201412 A31H As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Nz AR®TT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
RETB AR ZRE Investment in subsidiaries 10 7,168,984 5,798,947
R—REE QAR &R Interest in an associated company 1,436 1,436
AR ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 13 12,076 11,293
Wz BB REE Property, plant and equipment 21 34
H b pE Uk F18 — JEBDHEAEE > Other non-current receivables 18 5,393 10,627
7,187,910 5,822,337
RBEE Current assets
TE A FRIAE fe H g W 5k I8 Prepayments and other receivables 18 7,608 7,476
N EENGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 11 999,301 902,370
ERTHWERT Loans to subsidiaries 11 3,607,186 2,915,052
ReLBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 20 94,828 94,342
4,708,923 3,919,240
WEE Total assets 11,896,833 9,741,577
#— P EZER AR D A Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 81
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M201412 31 H As at 31 December 2014

2014 2013
B 5 ARETT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e EQUITY
% 7 Share capital 21 39,764 34,047
f& 10 5= 18 Share premium account 21 4,829,899 2,243,980
H At G5 & Other reserves 22
— BRI B — Proposed dividends 57,107 183,282
—HA — Others 1,608,735 1,776,726
R Total equity 6,535,505 4,238,035
a8& LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
EE Borrowings 25 4,229,919 5,101,644
REBERE Current liabilities
HibEIsERETER Other payables and accruals 24 58,796 23,294
EE Borrowings 25 1,072,299 335,330
TEeRMT A Derivative financial instruments 26 314 43,274
1,131,409 401,898
FER=R Total liabilities 5,361,328 5,503,542
EERBEHAE Total equity and liabilities 11,896,833 9,741,577
RBEEFE Net current assets 3,577,514 3,517,342
HEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 10,765,424 9,339,679
EEE LR
LO Chih-Hsien HOU Jung-Lung
WITESE WITES
Executive Director Executive Director

FE88E224H Y WA ARG ABIEHEZ— The notes on pages 88 to 224 are an integral part of these
oy e consolidated financial statements.
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H ZE2014%12 A31H |- 4FJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
B 5 AREBTR AREBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W Revenue 5 22,487,671 23,328,991
HERAR Cost of sales 29 (15,179,284) (15,549,362
EF Gross profit 7,308,387 7,779,629
HabFE— 558 Other gains - net 27 158,083 433,353
H A Other income 28 266,253 515,695
Hx Other expenses 29 (98,243) (131,236)
HERMIGHER Selling and marketing expenses 29 (6,294,847) (6,824,978)
TBAX Administrative expenses 29 (967,783) (840,036)
B RF Operating profit 371,850 932,427
BEKA Finance income 105,233 179,121
A& P AR Finance costs (147,382) (83,945)
BEWA (KAR) —F58 Finance income (costs) — net 31 (42,149) 95,176
LAREZ R ABR 2 JEfh Share of profit of investments
& A accounted for using the equity
method 12 84,977 88,445
R BT 45 B A % R Profit before income tax 414,678 1,116,048
PR T B 2 Income tax expense 32 (129,141) (199,636)
FERAQAFAEREFEA Profit for the year and
FEfRER attributable to equity holders
of the Company 285,537 916,412
EEXQATEZEEA Earnings per share for profit
EBiER2EREF attributable to equity holders of
(ANEBBRARE|E) the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—HEAREE — Basic and diluted 34 7.18%cents 25.46%) cents
BE Dividends 35 57,107 183,282

F88E2248 Y M BN A E VB RER 2 —

25 o consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 88 to 224 are an integral part of these
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SAXEWER |
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
H ZE2014%12H31H I[EFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Bt & AR®TR ARETET
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHER Profit for the year 285,537 916,412
Htzmu s : Other comprehensive income:
AEH DR B s B Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
REEHEESREE®  Transfer of fair value gains
BERIET AE 2 AFE previously taken to reserve to
FisEBE s income statement upon disposal
of available-for-sale financial
assets 22 - (284,827)
AHHESMEE 2 AFE  Fair value gains on available-for-
S —BRELEEE sale financial assets, net of tax 22 609 10,705
FEHtEZEKE - Other comprehensive income
BREIEEE for the year, net of tax 609 (274,122)
FERAQRTEZFEEBA Total comprehensive income
Eitz2EREAE for the year and attributable
to equity holders of the
Company 286,146 642,290

FE88E224H Y WA ARG A IEHEZ— The notes on pages 88 to 224 are an integral part of these
H#h e consolidated financial statements.

84 #i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2014 F#§



M2013F1 10 2 &8
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FEEA

Hitv2E WS
REEAREESRHEER
BERE ARBZRFE
MEEHRERER
AfHEERERE
AVENE-REFE
Hitn2ERHEAE

FEZZARHAE

ERBEAETZRS
H2012F B BE

R2013F12A31H 2 &tk

R201451 818 2 &8

2E R
FE A

Hiv2E
AfHESMEE L
AHENE - REFE

Htt2ERHELAR

FEZRERHAH

RREBAETZRS
FITLBMR
EH2013F AR Z S

R2014F12A310 2 &8

FB88E224H 2 MIFFBM AR B M B HEK Z —

e

H ZE2014%12 A31H |- 4FJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2013

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transfer of fair value gain previously
taken to reserve to income
statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transaction with owners
Dividends relating to 2012

Balance at 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2014

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transaction with owners
Issue of ordinary shares
Dividends relating to 2013

Balance at 31 December 2014

B2
Share
capital

34,047

34,047

34,047

5,717

a#

Total

7,671,068

916,412

(284,827)

10,705
(274,122)

642,290

(171,190)

8,142,168

8,142,168

285,537

609

609

286,146

2,591,636
(183,212)

ARREEEAARMS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

R 13 E Hitf#fE
Share Other
premium reserves
2,243,980 5,393,041
- 916,412
- (284,827)

- 10,705
- (274,122)

- 642,290

- (171,190)
2,243,980 5,864,141
2,243,980 5,864,141
- 285,537

- 609

- 609

- 286,146
2,585,919 -
- (183,212)
4,829,899 5,967,075

39,764

consolidated financial statements.
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10,836,738

The notes on pages 88 to 224 are an integral part of these



H ZE2014%12 A31 8 |- E For the year ended 31 December 2014
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REEABRA=EA
EHFER2IEE
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LEREE
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Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest expenses paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities
Investments in joint ventures and
associates
Decrease in investment in
joint ventures
Payment and prepayment for
land use rights
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Investments in time deposits with
maturity more than 3 months
Increase of investment properties
Purchase of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Dividends received from
joint ventures
Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Dividends received from
an associate
Dividends received from
available-for-sales financial assets

Net cash used in investing activities

2014
Pt & AR®T R
Note RMB’000

36 1,712,018
(114,781)
(186,008)

1,411,229

12 (308)

12 27,544

(124,008)

(3,037,248)
(17,329)

(324,099)
(32)

(86,700)

36 324,717

8,950

3,199

(3,225,314)

2013
AR®BTT
RMB’000

1,619,469
(76,125)
(309,226)

1,234,118

(95,548)

(717,199)
(4,487,246)

(15,114)

(60,449)

865,139

10,250

408,260

3,199

5,684

(4,083,024)



H ZE2014%12 A31H |- 4FJE For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
B 5E AR¥TR AR®KTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
AMEITBH2EHERE Cash flows from financing
activities
BT FT 1S IR F 5 Net proceeds from shares issued 2,591,636 -
RITEEMEHRE Proceeds from bank borrowings 13,021,744 9,411,359
BT RERSIA Proceeds from notes issued 2,000,000 1,000,000
BEERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (15,183,058) (8,264,796)
TTHEERB T AR Payment for derivative financial
instruments (43,274) -
MAREIRRFEA Dividends paid to equity holders of
SAFRE the Company (183,212) (171,190)
MEFBFAGE RS Net cash received in financing
activities 2,203,836 1,975,373
HeERBESESEYEM Net increase/(decrease)
(R2) #% in cash and cash equivalents 389,751 (873,533)
FHzRekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 1,413,929 2,290,809
RekBeEEM 2 Exchange gain/(losses) on cash
&N FE, (EE) and cash equivalents 342 (3,347)
FR2BeRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 20 1,804,022 1,413,929

FB8E224H 2 MIFF B AR A M B MR Z —

e

The notes on pages 88 to 224 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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al])R2007F7R4B B IE (H = B
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ik AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands °

ARBRREEBRAR MEWMBRF
(BARBGH[AEE]) TBETE
ARKME ([HE)REBEERIHE
RE R ERER ([F BRI E
MER]) -

RAGBETEKAZIKERARAEE K
N a1 R2007F12 4178 £ & B B
EXRGHARAR ([BZ])ERE
mlEm])e

BRRAFAIN ARABBHREAAR
BT (TARBET T 2%

KAV ERERN2015FE3IA17THES
EEHET -

EEETHERE

RREZEHEEMBRREMEMAZE
FABGRENMT - BB EHAIN

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2014 F#§



e IS AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1

mREE
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T 2 M08 - TY R T B a4
B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

@ — % FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
to conform to the current period’s presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on reported total assets,
liabilities, equity or profit.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,

89
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHREREE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

90

2.1

mEEE (F) 2.1
21.1 B BHRRKEZZE

@ AEECFRAZFETRAEET
A

AEFDR2014F1A1BRBZ

M FEERIRN TS FE] K&

BT EA WHAEBBEERY

&

e FBHEEGFEREI6H (&
7]) [EERE] 7201451
A1Bs 2% B2 FEH
AR ZIETHARIRA
FEBEEXN AR CEE
HERER  BREE TR
SHEENZER-

#— ¥ P EZER B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2014 F#§

Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards, and
interpretations have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2014 and have a material impact to the Group:

o HKAS 36 (Amendment) “Impairment of assets” is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014. The amendment addresses the
disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based
on fair value less costs of disposal.



e B IS ERAR YA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EEETBRRBE (&

2.1

mREE (F)

21.1 B BERKEZZE
(#4&)

@) AEBERA G RAEER.
R (&)

AEBER2014F1 A1BHEH
BFEERRA T HET R
BETERI A RZE EBBER
FaEBRHEASEN SHEE -
XETEHAEBRENERTE
(EAREFERRR I REENS
FTEEIE) ¢

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

The following new and amended standards, and
interpretations have been adopted by the Group for the

first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2014 but not currently relevant or do not have material
impact to the Group (although they may affect the

accounting for future transactions and events):

RUTEHHZ#E
Mz FEMBER
Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

BAEGFEAEI2R 2B
Amendments to HKAS 32

RV EERE1058 R125%
EE G ERE27 2 EF]

Amendments to HKFRSs 10, 12 and
HKAS 27

ERE G ERIEI95R 2 EF]

Amendment to HKAS 39

B8 (ERMBRERBZES)
BEF21R [-E]
HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 21 “Levies”

THIA - ERemMEERBEN

Financial instruments: Presentation’
on financial asset and liability
offsetting

REBBEZESE

Consolidation for investment entities

TRITA: ERNFTE—
[PTHETAZEE]

Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement — ‘Novation of
derivatives’

B FABBERIAREE

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets

2014F1H1H
1 January 2014

2014F1H1H
1 January 2014

20141 HA1H
1 January 2014

20141 H1H
1 January 2014

% — > %¥ BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 9/]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHRBE(H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 mBEE (4F) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21.1 Bt BRRFEFEZEE 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(& (Continued)

(b) EBMER014F1AT1HE (b)  New and amended standards have been issued but
G162 BT 1 KR A are not effective for the financial year beginning after
RIEFEFTIRANZ FTET RASIEE 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted
ZER)

RUTEHR 2%

Mz FEHABER
Effective for

annual periods beginning

on or after
ERGHERE19R 2 EET EREAEE 2014F7H1H
Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined benefits’ plans 1 July 2014
BEAGHENEIR 2B Bk 27 201651 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2016
BREMB|E LR FE105E 2 BT FEPBHRE 2016F1A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2016
BEEMBREENEIIF 2B SETH 201641 H1H
Amendment to HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2016
BEMBREERFE125 2 1B5] BERNEMER . En 201651 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2016
BERM RS ERFE1458 ELEEERA 2016F1A1H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
BB ENE165 2 1BF] ME BERRE 2016F1 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1 January 2016
EAEGHERB27THR 2 EFT BB ®REK 201651 A1H
Amendment to HKAS 27 Separate financial statements 1 January 2016
BA G ERE28% 2185 REERR 2 KE 201651 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 28 Investment in associates 1 January 2016
ARG ER B8 ZEFT BVEE 2016F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 38 Intangible assets 1 January 2016
EEGHENEMNRZEFT B¥ 201651 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 41 Agriculture 1 January 2016
BAM B RS ERE155 HEPZHENEREENKA 201751 AR
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
BARMBHREENFEOHR e®MIA 2018F1A1H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

92 iﬁ—ﬁ%ﬂfﬂﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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lidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning after
1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted
(Continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued the
annual improvements project which addresses several
issues in the 2010-2012 reporting cycle, 2011-2013
reporting cycle, 2012-2014 reporting cycle, and
includes changes to the following standards. The Group
has not applied the following revised HKFRSs published
in the annual improvements project.

RUTBEHHzE
Mz FEMBER
Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

ERP B HREERFE25R DA B 19 1~ 3K 2014%7H1H
HKFRS 2 Share-based payment 1 July 2014
RV B HmEERFEINR ¥BE 0 20145F7H1H
HKFRS 3 Business combinations 1 July 2014
ER VB HmEERF8HR 2B 20147H1H
HKFRS 8 Operating segments 1 July 2014
ERV B HmEERFIR SRIA 2014%7H1H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 July 2014
BB YRS LR F 1358 RFEFE 20147H1H
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1 July 2014
EREERE165% MmE - BERZRME 2014F7H1H
HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment 1 July 2014
ER gt ERIE2455 B Bt 7 B BR 2014%7H1H
HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014
#i— BRI A R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 98
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2 EESHHEEBE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 wEEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

211 BEFf KRR EZZE 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(#&) (Continued)

(b) EBMER014FIATAE (b)  New and amended standards have been issued but
G162 BT 2 1 K R B
FRIEFEFTIRAN #T5T RASIEET 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted
ER () (Continued)

are not effective for the financial year beginning after

RUTBE#HRZE
Rz FEHBER
Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

BB G ERIEI7HR B ABERIARAEE 201457 H18

HKAS 37 Provisions, contingents liabilities and 1 July 2014
contingent assets

BB G ERIZE385 BEEE 201457 H1H

HKAS 38 Intangible assets 1 July 2014

BB G ERIE395 CRMIA-HANE 201457 A1H

HKAS 39 Financial instrument — recognition and 1 July 2014
measurement

BB G ERIFE405% REME 201457 A1H

HKAS 40 Investment property 1 July 2014

&R U W 2ERIFE 55 FIELEERBDEERDRIEREER 2016%7H1H

HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and 1 July 2016
discontinued operations

BRI REERFETHR CRITAE-HE 201657 H1H

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2016

EREGHERIE195 BE®EA 201657 A 1H

HKAS 19 Employee benefits 1 July 2016

BB G ERIE345 mh H B 75 BB 3R 201657 A 1H
HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting 1 July 2016
94 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning after
1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted
(Continued)

The Group will apply the new standards, amendments
and interpretation described above when they become
effective. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment on the impact of these new standards,
amendments and interpretation and yet to assess the
full impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position when they become effective.

(c)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation as from the company’s
first financial year commencing on or after 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group in the period of initial application of Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and only the presentation and the disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements
will be affected.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(@ Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

— e EhEZER B R 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement
(Note 2.9).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the group’s accounting
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

@ — % FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associated companies

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associated
companies includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associated companies (Continued)

The Group’s share of associated companies’ post-
acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equal or exceed its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in the associated company is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘Share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

24
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Associated companies (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated companies are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the income
statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as at 1 January 2012. Under HKFRS
11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
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Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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26 HIEBE 2.6 Foreign currency translation
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(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.
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(c)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
income statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

@ — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(@ Gooadwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an

expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the

estimated useful life of 5 years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

@ — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivable’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘pledged bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet (also refer to
Notes 2.16 and 2.17).
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2.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income

statement as ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets
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(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income

statement.
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designed as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the

consolidated income statement.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.
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BORBERREEREXRHKES
3L 7 n 85 AR TS 1T TR AR
B ZHIA - B 5 N H A B ER
Rz W E BB F R AR (1
EEEKLLERGT AR REE
M) ERDBEARBDEE: B
BIERDEEZT -

B 5 M E A EURER KA AR F
B HRRAERN SRR
AR AR R E LG E -

Q17T BHERBEZEEY

MRARERER REREEF
EBEVERENRRTATFHEZAS
KERITBAFR - B AR =1
AZEBERMREBRRITER
YA AREMREEEY -

BB D FEEAES

EERBRBEITHRIBREN
48 A AN P2 7 25 7 51 A% P 1S Y
A (ERIREA) -

A& 5 R

ENEZEASEABREERD
) R R B P am SR A T R
A2 & o RN FRE) SN B H]
FIFSUA (D ELREELR
Hir - AR R ERHE)  HEo 8
ARBAE: DRI ERPRES
5l e

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand and
deposits held at call with banks. Time deposits with
maturity more than three months and pledged bank
deposits are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Trade payables (Continued)

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.21 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
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(b)  Profit-sharing and bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually at the date when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s

acceptance of the products.

(b) Consultation service income

Consultation service income is recognised in the period

when the services are rendered.

(c) Operating lease income (as a lessor)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the

leased asset is diminished.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Operating leases

(@ The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.

(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.28 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates to secure loans and other
banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
income statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.29 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is

probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the

Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

#— ¥ P EZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

Most of the group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the future borrowings from
overseas and recognised assets or liabilities, such as
cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) and borrowings
(Note 25), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (‘USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

As at 31 December 2014, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2014 would have been
approximately RMB104,872,000 higher/lower (2013:
RMB168,995,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
and HKD denominated borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of certain investments held by the Group are
classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-
sale (Note 13) or at fair value through profit or loss (Note
19) . The Group has not hedged its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities financial assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are classified
either as available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit or loss and are publicly traded, the fair value is
determined with reference to quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2014, if the market prices of the
securities classified as available-for-sale had increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly
traded available-for-sale financial assets and total equity
would be approximately RMB1 million (2013: RMB1
million) higher/lower than the current value. If the market
prices of securities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss had increased/decreased by 10% with
all other variables held constant, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s publicly traded financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and post-tax profit for the
year would be approximately RMB6,503,000 (2013: Nil)
higher/lower than the current value.

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.



e B R AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 BBRERERE (&)

3.1

MREREE (&)
(@) mEEE (&)
(i) BT TEER D FEFEE R

BRERTTER (B EE20) B E (K
iE25) M B4 AN B EAT A HE
EAFEEERAE-

AEEZMEERKERTER
REE - FRRIOTERRERESA
SEAZRSRENXER - Mk
REBNEERNEE AR R FE
MERER - ARELERERSR
ERAFEFERRETEMY
e SRITIF SR BB B RO R K S 1
7 Bl B EE T 20 K BT RE25 o

M2014F12 8318 - WA HAth
BHRFTE  BOIEHKEEF
KA, AEI00EEL KFE
MEmnfemd EmHAR
#541,293,0007T (20134 : & 2
1A R#47.664,0007T) © =
ZHREERN 2B RE M H
(BERBOIFERFBRAZE) -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1
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Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits (Note 20) and borrowings
(Note 25) with interest charges, the Group have no
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 20 and Note 25 respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB41,293,000 lower/higher (2013:
RMB47,664,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on borrowings which
would offset interest income on bank deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2014, these bank deposits and
cash at bank were deposited in reputable financial
institutions which are considered with low credit risk,
the table below shows bank deposits and cash at bank
balances by counterparties:

2014 2013
ARET AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH Counterparties

— PO K MWiR1T* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 614,154 502,265
—HNERTT — Foreign owned banks 970,698 714,263
—HMBEANEERIT - Other domestic commercial banks 543,209 203,156
2,128,061 1,419,684

* g KA AIRITEIEF * Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and

TERITBROBRAR F
BEERITRNDAERAR
FEERTERODBR AR RF
BER|ITRMPBRAF -

o REB MR RS S ER - T)
BTRITREBEIBOIER - E
REAEBEBERATNERELBE
HE A -

Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

There were also financial guarantees provided by the
Group, which were the guarantees given to the banks
and financial institutions to secure borrowings and
finance leases of an associate of the Group.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements are as follows:

2014 2013
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREEBBERIN Credit risk exposure relating
HEMEERRE to off-balance sheet items
B SR Financial guarantees 48,927 79,808
®12A31H At 31 December 48,927 79,808

EEEYABHZERSTET
JE % *5 AL 5 18

AEBRBOHEDHELPNK
ERNBR SRR ZZERE
H-RIBEEAREERTFERT
BZEMNEP AEBED LK
B AEREEREZSZREES

() FHEELEE

BEZRDECRAREESES
ReRAZAE R EEY &6
RERXMZEAACEREEE
NEBABRES REETS
BT ZREN -AKBZBED#
FRAMZEAREERERE
NHERASEHE RO LREELZ
ExAHEHA-

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in
bills provided by its customers on delivery of goods.
Credit sales are made only to selected customers with
good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

(c¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

134

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

A&EE Group PR-F -ZWE —ERE @t
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2014512831H As at 31 December 2014
EE Borrowings 1,556,273 2,127,120 2,152,975 5,836,368
EEMBMR Interest payments on borrowings 130,727 96,900 65,854 293,481
fTEEMTIA Derivative financial instruments 314 - - 314
ERESERLENSZE  Trade and bils payables 1,054,204 - - 1,054,204
HivEHBREFER  Other payables and accruals,
(TaEdeRaR) (excluding non-financial liabilties) 1,896,678 - - 1,896,678
At RAETHE Other long term payables - 237,985 - 237,985
4,638,196 2,462,005 2,218,829 9,319,030
HEERAN Financial guarantee contracts 48,927 - - 48,927
R2013F12831R As at 31 December 2013
fFE Borrowings 902,341 042,231 4,150,413 6,003,985
BEFBFT Interest payments on borrowings 122,928 115,302 101,964 340,194
ITEERIA Derivative financial instruments 43274 - - 43274
ENESEZLENZEE  Trade and bils payables 1,409,968 - - 1,409,968
HivENZBRESER  Other payables and accruals,
(TeEFeRER) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 1,792,877 - - 1,792,877
HpREEMNFUE Other long term payables - 230,971 - 230,971
4,271,388 1,288,504 4,261,377 9,821,269
HEERAD Financial guarantee contracts 79,808 - - 79,808

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) FEBELEE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
b NG| Company PR-F -EWE “ZEF Foh
Less than Between 1 Between 2
iyear and2years and>5 years Total
ARBFL  ARBFL AREBTLT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2014E12831H As at 31 December 2014
B8 Borrowings 1,072,209 2,076,944 2,152,975 5,302,218
EEFENR Interest payments on borrowings 129,284 96,698 65,854 291,836
TESRIEA Derivative financial instruments 314 - - 314
HibEM B RESER  Other payables and accruals,
(TREFLBAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 57,420 - - 57,420
1,259,317 2,173,642 2,218,829 5,651,788
R2013512F31A As at 31 December 2013
L Borrowings 335,330 942,231 4,159,413 5,436,974
EEFERR Interest payments on borrowings 118,467 115,302 101,964 335,733
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 43274 - - 43274
HEtENFEREFER  Other payables and accruals,
(TaEkemar) (excluding non-financial liabilties) 21,249 - - 21,249
518,320 1,057,533 4,261,377 5,837,230
% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 86
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2014 F#§



3.2

e R R MG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 HERRERE(H&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
EXERER (&) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
AEENEBESEABER The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
T4 TE AR HA50% © 1320145 K below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014
201312 A1 AN ERAEL X and 2013 are as follows:
LUNE
2014 2013
ARBTR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wWIEE (ME25) Total borrowings (Note 25) 5,836,368 6,003,985
BIReMIBEEEY  Less: cash and cash equivalents
(Kt5E20) (Note 20) (1,804,022) (1,413,929)
BEIEFE Net debt 4,032,346 4,590,056
B Total equity 10,836,738 8,142,168
BEXR Total capital 14,869,084 12,732,224
EAXREELE Gearing ratio 27.12% 36.05%
M2014F12A318  BEAXABE L The decrease of gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014
K A TY 20144 A Bl 8 was due to the conduct by the company of equity fund
REERKTESE - raising activity by way of a rights issue in 2014.

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 87
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

NEEREE 3.3
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Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2014
and 2013.
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BEREERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 ATEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
RN20145F 20134
12831H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
ARE TR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
AtHESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
— 51 — Level 1 12,076 11,293
— 3B —Level 3 180,733 180,733
192,809 192,026

WAFEFBEEZRTEZ  Financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss

—F1E - Level 1 86,710 -
=5 Liabilities
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments

—FoE — Level 2 314 43,274

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 89
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the listed securities are determined based on
the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair values
(Level 2)

Level 2 trading derivatives comprise forward foreign
exchange contracts. These forward foreign exchange
contracts have been fair valued using forward exchange
rates that are quoted in an active market. The effects
of discounting are generally insignificant for Level 2
derivatives.

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2014 comprised contracts with notional
principal amounts totalling USD140,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB856,660,000).

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013.

2014 2013
ARBTT AR¥EFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R 45 81 Opening balance 180,733 165,811
NEEFE Fair value gains - 14,922
BRfR aE R (M95E13) Closing balance (Note 13) 180,733 180,733

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 4»]
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under this
methodology, fair value is determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the investee company to
present worth based on profit and cash flows forecast
and other relevant information provided by the investee
company. The discount rate used for the investment
as at 31 December 2014 was 14.5% (2013: 14.5%)
per annum which was determined by the risk-free rate,
market return, estimated beta of the investee company
and firm specific risk factors. The market approach
adopts various sales/income multiples to assess the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under
this methodology, fair value is determined by multiplying
various sales/income of the investee company to
multiplies with regard to the risks and nature of the
business. In estimating the multiples, reference has
been made to the operating results of companies with
similar business nature, having their operating activities
in the PRC and whose ownership interests are publicly
traded. As at 31 December 2014, if the discount rate
and the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.95%/13.05%), the
carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial
assets would be approximately RMB5,135,000 lower/
RMB6,429,000 higher than the current value.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@) Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note
13) is determined by using valuation techniques (Note
3.3). The Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The effect of the changes in one or more of
the inputs has been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

143

Annual Report 2014 F#§



e MR WK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

144

FAEETmERME (&)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b) Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgement areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable
by 10% from management’s estimates, the group
would need to increase/(decrease) the tax assets by
RMB18,389,000 (2013: increase/(decrease) the tax
assets by RMB6,945,000).

(c) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgments and estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If the budgeted revenue growth
rate used in the value-in-use calculation for the instant
noodle CGU had been 0.5% lower than management’s
estimate at 31 December 2014, the recoverable amount
will be approximate to the carrying value.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies
(@) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee company, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were
considered significant or prolonged, the Group would
suffer an loss of approximately RMB18,770,000 in its
2014 financial statements, being the transfer of the
accumulated fair value adjustments on the impaired
available-for-sale financial assets recognised in equity to
the income statement.

(b) Classification of borrowings

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 1 to
determine whether certain borrowings should be
classified as current or non-current liabilities. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates both its intention
and discretion. When the Group expects, and has the
full discretion, to roll over the borrowings for at least
twelve months after the reporting period under the
existing loan facility, the Group classifies the borrowings
as non-current, even if they would otherwise be due
within a shorter period.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Wz 2 7 & & #

HITEEFHAERTBZEERRA -H
TESEHNAKEZABERE - UFH
RARNEER EEEBRBEZERE

g‘J/'\AA $/\_L °

HARAREEIO% A F 2 SHEREKES
RPBET SRTEERERAREE
BT - B IR B E o A E AT AR AR
HEANEMO I 2 RE - RITESR
BEoRBENFGEEESBZRER - AH
TEERFEZEBER (TRERIN)
A BWER B2 T AR E-

AEBABOHERTEHRE UEMR
B BEPETHNRZM MG AR
EEKFR10%HIA £ -

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are retail sales and no
revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /I 47
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Wz ko EBER (&) 5

H E20145F K2013F12A31B ILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

ZAEERMT 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
2014
&R HEE Hitr AAE PN
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥Trn AR¥TR AR®Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SBEE Segment results
Wz Revenue 14,004,596 7,960,321 522,754 - 22,487,671
AR/ (EB) Segment profit/(loss) 702,474 (93,575) 35,168  (272,217) 371,850
BERA— Finance cost - net - - - (42,149) (42,149)
PAgREANR 2 EG Share of profit of investments
BERH accounted for using
the equity method 113,389 - - (28,412) 84,977
RPAE AT R A Profit before income tax 414,678
PR Income tax expense (129,141)
FEHF Profit for the year 285,537
155 % A AT 51l At Other segment items included
2HIEE in the income statement
TEREE Depreciation and amortisation 1,011,186 298,261 37,383 66,217 1,413,047
IREERERE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 11,464,783 3,919,781 301,340 4,032,797 19,718,701
iR EANRRRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 1,383,356 - - 162,352 1,545,708
BEE Total assets 21,264,409
&f Liabilities 2,774,594 1,192,923 110,485 6,349,669 10,427,671
BERE Total liabilities 10,427,671
EXYH Capital expenditure 2,521,025 585,543 174,910 64,182 3,345,660
#— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Wk oIHER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
2013
Bk HEE Hit AR r&E
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PHEE Segment results
gy Revenue 15,151,526 7,825,918 351,548 - 23,328,991
PEEH,/ (EE) Segment profit/(loss) 848,693  (142,648) 22403 203979 932,427
BERA-FE Finance income - net 95,176 95,176
DAEZSEABE ZIEME  Share of profit of investments
RE R accounted for using
the equity method 102,771 - - (14,326) 88,445
BRETEBAER Profit before income tax 1,116,048
PIERHX Income tax expense (199,636)
FERF Profit for the year 916,412
SR AT H b Other segment items included
AEER in the income statement
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 787,499 235494 42,548 38,288 1,103,829
PHEERER Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 10,526,599 3,541,663 161,543 3,237,871 17,467,676
BEFEAEN®RE  Investments accounted for
using the equity method 1,276,601 - - 223,515 1,500,116
MEE Total assets 18,967,792
BE Liabilities 2,965,611 1,372,883 43214 6,443916 10,825,624
BaR Total liabilities 10,825,624
EAYH Capital expenditure 3,431,043 860,640 55,799 398,823 4,746,305
% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 49
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Wz ko EBER (&

BRARDEANZEETEZBREAERE
EmEHEE AHLESREE B
EMBOTFFIMRELBEEEY KR
BMENEE LGB

BRARDEARNzBAEFEBRRELT

FEHaE EMmEHaEREE-

ERAXHEBREAELMERE WE-
BEERE HENEURETLEE-

R TRBERZERBDEE (TEES
MIARBLERSHEE) @BRMT

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, investment properties and related land use rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax
liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in
different countries is as follows :

2014 2013
AR¥T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EMBEE (TR The total of non-current assets
ERTAER other than financial instruments and
BEFSTHERE) B deferred income tax assets
— - PRC 15,587,380 14,042,818
— BN R - Overseas countries 21,713 23,021
=1 Financial instruments 245,092 202,653
RIEFTBHEE Deferred income tax assets 321,881 191,718
16,176,066 14,460,210

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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THERE-FEEH 6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP
REERTHEAECERERN T The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
HWEAE 2 QEHERE  LREFRE operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
ST book amounts are analysed as follows:
2014 2013
AR T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
W1 A1H At 1 January 2,113,888 1,426,756
NE Additions 124,008 727,310
& Disposals (29,568) -
#oy (MI5E29) Amortisation (Note 29) (57,649) (40,178)
M®12H31H At 31 December 2,150,679 2,113,888
(DN Cost 2,349,800 2,257,049
g & Accumulated amortisation (199,121) (143,161)
BREFER Net book amount 2,150,679 2,113,888
KEB A EREHMRSP All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and
B EBBOT: are with the lease periods as follows:
2014 2013
AR®T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHRBERNEE: In the PRC, held on:
50F LA E 2 [RTEHA Original lease period of over 50 years 10,758 10,982
10F =50 2 R H3 Original lease period of
between 10 and 50 years 2,139,921 2,102,906
FORMRE F5E Closing net book amount 2,150,679 2,113,888

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 6/]
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6 THEAE-XKEER(H) 6

AEEz L ERERHEE ARG K
mARAHERA]  [IHERTISHEE
P R [T BT

LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP (CONTINUED)

Amortisation changes of the Group’s land use rights have
been charged to ‘cost of sales’, ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2014 2013

AR®E T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

$5 5 A A Cost of sales 34,393 23,401
HE RTiZHRER X Selling and marketing expenses 4,333 2,114
TR Administrative expenses 18,923 14,663
57,649 40,178

R20145F 128318 BB AR
117,584,0007T & + #h I 7k BU15 + #b {3
PR KEBTIERZE@EEEZ-

162
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As at 31 December 2014, land use right certificates for land
use rights amounting to RMB117,584,000 have not been
obtained and the Group is in the progress of applying for
these certificates.
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7 VE - BERREBE-LXEHEH 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

GROUP
HER EHIR.
[ & THR%E REHRBREE BEXE ERIR &it
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures ~ improvements in progress Total

ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETT  AR%TR  AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

201351 81R At 1 January 2013

KA Cost 2,337,952 5,568,227 2,148,900 9,153 1,470,129 11,534,361
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (628,552) (1,991,673) (993,894) (8,166) - (3,622,285)
ZiHERE Accumulated impairment provision - (421) - - - (421)
RHE Net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,155,006 97 1,470,129 7,911,655
HZ013512A31ALEE Year ended 31 December 2013

FNERFE Opening net book amount 1,709,400 3,576,133 1,156,006 987 1,470,129 7,911,655
HE Additions 123,345 264,254 560,509 - 2,995,325 3,043,433
THEEA Transfer upon completion 1,147,072 1,224,577 227,105 - 2,598,754) -
HE (39 Disposals (Note 39(a)(i) (16,656) (464,950) (108,402) - - (590,008)
BRERENE (Fis) Transfers to investment properties (Note 8) (27,751) - - - - (27751)
& (M20) Depreciation (Note 29) (135,229) (468,252) (446,989) (987) - (1,051,457)
BEER (M) Reversal of provision (Note 29) - a7 - - - o
FREATE Closing net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,229 - 1,866,700 10,185,899
#2013%12531A At 31 December 2013

A Cost 3,631,222 6,067,936 2,623,475 9,152 1,866,700 14,088,485
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (731,041) (1,925,759) (1,236,246) 9,152 - (3902,192)
ZitRERE Accumulated impaiment provision - (394) - - - (304)
REFE Net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,229 - 1,866,700 10,185,899
BEN14F12A31ALLEE Year ended 31 December 2014

ENSETE Opening net book amount 2,800,181 4,131,789 1,387,229 - 1866700 10,185,899
HE Additions 54,532 162,371 454,679 - 2,532,709 3,204,291
THEEA Transfer upon completion 1,394,339 1,120,658 282,072 - (2,797,069) -
HE (39 Disposals (Note 39(a)(i) (10,622) (336,929) (56,913) - (934) (405,398)
ERZRENE (Was) Transfers to investment properties (Note 8) (4,055) - - - - (4,955)
& (5520) Depreciation (Note 29) (212,482) (576,403) (549,314) - - (1,338,199)
BERE (Witoo) Reversal of provision (Note 29) - 15 - - - 15
EREETE Closing net book amount 4,020,093 4,501,501 1,517,753 - 1601406 11,641,653
R2014%12A31R At 31 December 2014

A Cost 4,957,614 6,798,028 3,176,830 9,152 1,601,406 16,543,030
2itHE Accumulated depreciation (936,621) (2,296,148) (1,659,077) (9,152) - (4,900,998)
ZitHEARE Accumulated impairment provision - (379) - - - (379)
FEE Net book amount 4,020,993 4,501,501 1,517,753 - 1,601,406 11,641,653
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7 ME - BERFZHE-—AXEEH 7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
(#&) GROUP (CONTINUED)

WEBRAEBRARERMBRUOT Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2014 2013
AR%T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 E AN Cost of sales 845,419 679,131
HERMIZHEERASZ Selling and marketing expenses 354,540 286,278
TEFAE Administrative expenses 138,240 86,048
1,338,199 1,051,457
REBZEFEFMAFE- The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.
R2014% 2013412 A31 B I £ K ## There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
TR BREREE- 31 December 2014 and 2013.
KEEFHEZHSZBAOAR Rental income amounting to approximately RMB19.9 million
#19,900,0007T (2013F : AR ¥ (2013: RMB5.5 million) derived from lease of buildings
5,500,0007C) BERT AL B WR KA [ E is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
AL (Hf3E28) © statement (Note 28).
FRN AEEERBEGEREENEBENK During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
AR AR¥35,397,0007T (2013F : AR amounting to RMB35,397,000 (2013: RMB9,665,000) on
#9,665,0007T ) BT E R o G EKATY qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
RE-REENNETHEEF2.66% weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 2.66%
(20135 :2.23% ) BEFRE A& - (2013: 2.23%) per annum.

/l 64 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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REVNE-F5KE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP

2014 2013

AR¥ETR AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

®1A1H At 1 January 249,365 167,880

NE Additions 32 60,448
HEAYE WE REE Transfer from property, plant and

(PF5E7) equipment (Note 7) 4,955 27,751

e (FFaE29) Depreciation (Note 29) (11,913) (6,714)

W12A31H At 31 December 242,439 249,365

M12 A31HEK A Cost as at 31 December 297,597 292,229

RETE Accumulated depreciation (55,158) (42,864)

M12 A31 B EE FE Net book amount as at 31 December 242,439 249,365

REYEMR BB RTEHE  TERE
B B40FEM50FEA L | o

KEREMEZHEDH ARA KR
RO THEMFE] -

The investment properties are located in Shanghai and Jiang
Su Province and erected on land with lease periods of 40 and
50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.

2014 2013

AR®T T ARBTTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e WA Rental income 64,986 52,177
REELEHESWAZYWEZ Direct operating expenses from property

BEELERI that generated rental income (11,590) (6,574)

53,396 45,603

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 66
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8 REWX-ZT5E (&)

BREMEZREERAFEFIWT

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the investment

properties are set out as follows:

2014 2013

AR®T ARBEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

REE Carrying amount 242,439 249,365
NEE Fair value 330,912 319,143

R2014% K2013F12A31H 2 A F &
TIRERE 2 B1TaHE  MEARTATE
Rig A\BUE RE%E (FE3E)FHRE

TREREERE -

ERERNABRBABBEZATE

The fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were
determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Information about fair value measurements using significant

(ZFEIE)MEH: unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:
Tl R A B
Unobservable inputs
72014F12831H
AR AFE HE BhIE %
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2014 Rental value Discount rate
(AR®T ) (AR¥F )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
W= A
i 109,598 12,493 = & per annum 10%
Plant A
A B
g 122,249 16,206 & & per annum 10%
Plant B
iy N\
#OB 99,065 6,162 4 £ per annum 10%
Office building
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REVMEZ-FA&KHE (&)

ERERTABERRABIEZAFE

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

(FIE)MER: unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:
TR R A BE
Unobservable inputs
72013512A318
AES YNSRIE] HE AL TR %
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2013 Rental value Discount rate
(AR®EFT) (AR®EFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
\D, A
w5 94,374 11,184 &4 per annum 10%
Plant A
BB 124,627 16,019 =4 per annum 10%
Plant B
¥ 7\
R 100,142 5,503 &4 per annum 10%
Office building

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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9 BEFEE-T5KE

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

B
Computer
software
ARMEF T
RMB’000
A2013F181H At 1 January 2013
B Cost 24,749
s i Accumulated amortisation (17,812)
25T RE Accumulated impairment -
BREFRE Net book amount 6,937
B E2013F12A31B L FE Year ended 31 December 2013
FYRmFHE Opening net book amount 6,937
INE Additions 15,114
BiH (M529) Amortisation (Note 29) (5,480)
FARRMEFHE Closing net book amount 16,571
A2013FE12A31H At 31 December 2013
B AR Cost 39,863
2T Accumulated amortisation (23,292)
ZEHRE Accumulated impairment -
BRTENF R Net book amount 16,571
BZ2014F12A31HLEE Year ended 31 December 2014
FHREFEE Opening net book amount 16,571
NE Additions 17,329
By (M13E29) Amortisation (Note 29) (5,286)
FREREFH Closing net book amount 28,614
#2014%F12831H At 31 December 2014
PN Cost 57,192
2T EEH Accumulated amortisation (28,578)
ZEHRE Accumulated impairment -
BREFRE Net book amount 28,614
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BREE-F£8 (& 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
B EcBEE YR A [T X The amortisation of computer software has been charged
RIBERMGHEERERII P X - to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
TR A HARM4L,550,0007T & expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB4,550,000
AR ¥736,0007T (2013F : AR and RMB736,000 (2013: RMB4,726,000 and RMB754,000),
4,726,0007t & A R #754,0007T ) ° respectively.
RMBABRZRE—A2E 10 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY
2014 2013
AR¥T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT EZRE: Investment, at cost:
—JE LR G — Unlisted shares 7,168,984 5,798,947

R B R R 2R EE T A R20145
EHEE -

N2014FE12A31H AR R X E M B
NAZZEFHHRH 40 °

The increase in investment in subsidiaries was due to the
capital injection made during 2014.

The list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2014 is set out in Note 40.

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. zl 59
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11 FEURE B A B RTR K @ Y & 2
Bl 2 B

FEMHI B AR AR EER 28 RE
[B] 7E 42 S o 5% AR IR 15 TR ALY B A R
BERKRMBARAEAYE BHE
REHZ N 25 E - AR E B REZ
ERE MM B QR IR BRI AT

MME AT B AMER TBUE
T EHE R AR 2ME A MIR1.5%2 & F

RAEE R R e B A B ROR K& 8
ARERZEEEBREAFERE-

N

12 BEBZARNRE-FTKH

EEERBEREINEELT:

11

12

AMOUNTS DUE FROM AND LOANS TO
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and without fixed terms of repayment. They represent
dividend receivable from a subsidiary and amounts paid on
behalf of subsidiaries for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment. The Company has the intention to receive such
amounts and the subsidiaries should pay on demand.

The loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, mainly denominated
in USD and repayable within twelve months with the interest
rate of 1.5% per annum.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from subsidiaries and
loans to subsidiaries approximate their fair values as at the
balance sheet dates.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2014 2013

AR%T ARMETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

B A a2 #E () Interests in associates (a) 1,108,406 1,015,520
EEMEZERD) Interests in joint ventures (b) 437,302 484,596
MW12A31H At 31 December 1,545,708 1,500,116

160
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EANBEREROEEDT
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12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as
follows:

2014 2013

AR®T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEAL B & R B F (a) Share of profits of associates (a) 96,085 90,008
JEMR A L NZEEEREF(b) Share of losses, net of profits of

joint ventures (b) (11,108) (1,563)

HE12A31BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 84,977 88,445

(a)

REE QR 2R - EE (@) Interests in associates — Group

REERRZEZZEBHWT

The movements in interests in associates are as follows:

2014 2013

AR®T T ARBEFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1A1H At 1 January 1,015,520 930,524
NE Additions - 253
EEREAREDE Transfer to joint ventures - (2,066)
&4 5 F Share of profits 96,085 90,008
B4 B Dividends received (3,199) (3,199)

M®12H31H At 31 December 1,108,406 1,015,520
% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 6/]
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12 RESZEARNKRE -KXEE

12

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

(#%&) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
(@ REBEELIZEZ XK (@) Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

(#&)

R20145F12A31H » K& B 2 B The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
BARFIBIT - 2EPLAEZET December 2014, all of which equity method is used to

iR o account for, are set out as follows:

AMALER,
ARAR R AH BrRER/RA AEBESERE TEEH
Paid-up
Country/place and capital/ Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2014 2013

LmARE:

Listed:

Baibh 2 E@NRT REES AR 16.30% 15.64% RGBSR AT REE
RHERADE 2001566 4268 392,600,0007T BREWR AHEER
(TR@MEt]) ZHE

(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB392,600,000 The production and sales
Co., Ltd.") (*Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001 of concentrated apple

juice, pear juice, apple
essence, forage etc.
products.

FEHAF:

Unlisted:

SEBR@RHBRAF  PELR AR 47.83% 47.83%  EEREERH
([SEBRA1) 200510 A28F 991,833,776 7C

(Jinmailang Beverage Beijing, PRC, RMB991,833,776 Manufacturing and sale of
Corporate Limited") 28 October 2005 beverages

162

(*Jinmailang Corporate”)

* KX AW ARRERERS
BEhXaEEH-

*

The English name represents the best effort by
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.
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12 BEZZEARNBRE-XREH 12
(#8)

(a)

|/

I

REBERA2BHE-AE

]

H

RNEGEGEBHERR 2HBER
MEoT

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

(a) Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
shares of the associated companies in aggregate is as

follows:
2014 2013
AR¥F T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEEAER Summary of balance sheet

EmEEE Non-current assets 1,469,953 1,380,406
MEEE Current assets 448,982 462,021
BEE Total assets 1,918,935 1,842,427
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 34,241 21,904
mEBE Current liabilities 776,288 805,003
FES =R Total liabilities 810,529 826,907
FEE Net assets 1,108,406 1,015,520

BELZAEWAE Summary of comprehensive income
U & Revenue 1,525,766 1,566,124
KB T RBIB % Post-tax profits from operations 96,085 90,008
Hin2mEBA Other comprehensive income - -
2 HEBAERE Total comprehensive income 96,085 90,008
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12 BREFEFAERENKRE-KEE 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
(#8) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

(b) REELEsEZ-AEE (b) Interests in joint ventures - Group
REELEZEZ2EEHNOT The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:
2014 2013
AR¥T T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 484,596 399,048
NE Additions 308 95,295
AR E Decrease in investments (27,544) -
EE A QA Transfer from associates - 2,066
FEAE BB CRUE F) Share of losses, net of profits (11,108) (1,563)
2 B Dividend received (8,950) (10,250)
W12A31H At 31 December 437,302 484,596
REELEZHRATEMLZEE Share of losses in interests in joint ventures were
DEZEHRERREMAIZERED mainly due to the fair value changes of the financial
ENPBMEPEZATEERE assets at fair value through profit or loss in the financial
mRECeREEATEEZEEHM statements of China F&B Venture investments.
ﬁ o
R2014F12A318  KEB 24 The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as at
B (HIELEMITUAERET 31 December 2014, all of which are unlisted and equity
BR)FEIBEMT method is used to account for, are set out as follows:

/I 64 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2014 F#§



12 R

ARNERE-FT&H

12

e R R MG
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

(%) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
b) REeeEbFEoTz—KE (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)

(&)

EMRLER
ARER wHREH BRER AEERERE TEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2014 2013

BINIXERERAE HEIEM AR #1,000,0007 50% 50%  REERKERRS
REEERDA 20085%7H18H
([ERAIZREER])

(United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB1,000,000 Investment management
Management Co., Ltd.”) 18 July 2008 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)

BAgNSHIEERRR HEEAR AR 50% 50%  SEHH R FRBEZ
([EagHl) 20096A9A 100,000,0007¢ KRNI REE

(Yantai Tongli Beverage Yantai, PRC, RMB100,000,000 OEM processing and
Industries Co., Ltd.") 9 June 2009 sales of various types
(“Yantai Tongli") of beverages, fruit juice,

tea, etc.

EMERRBIEBRAAF HEER 19,060,000% 7T 42% 42%  EEZESHEEKRE
(TEmER]) 2009%7A248 SRR R E

(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, USD19,060,000 Production of various
Industries Co., Ltd.*) 24 July 2009 types of beverage
(“Guilin Ziquan”) including fruit,

vegetable, tea and
coffee etc.

Greater China F&B HEHS 10,700% T 50% 50% @ RAERE
Capital Partners Ltd. 2008F4A16H
(“Greater China F&B”)

Cayman Islands, UsD10,700 Investment management
16 April 2008

RERIH—CEBRRE HEKE AR 50% 50% @ HEREEBES
(TRELI]) 201147 A29R 232,000,0007

(Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RMB232,000,000 Production of various
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 29 July 2011 types of plastic
(“Wuhan Zijiang”) products

SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHS 500,000% T 50% 50% REAEE
(“SMSCC”) 2012511 A28H

Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management

28 November 2012
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12 BESZEARNRE -F&H

12

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

(#%&) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
b) REeEbFEosRZz KK (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)
(#&)
HMRIER,
NAER R A H BREX EEEELRE TEER
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2014 2013
SMS Investment REEE 500,000% 7 50% 50% REER
Management Co., Ltd. 2013%F1 A28
(“SMS Investment
Management”)
Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
2 January 2013
ERRRAERACE B M ARE 39.74% 39.74%  REER
(M#£Raml) 2009%4A138 516,500,0007C
(China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB516,500,000 Investment management
Investments®) 13 April 2009
(“China F&B”)
HELRHHIZERRR HEES 9,000,000 7T 35% 3%  EERHEEHH
([EEZER]) 2013%7H238
(Ziquan Beverage Yichang, PRC, USD9,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
industries CO., LTD.%) 23 July 2013 beverages
SMS Consumer Fund LP.  FIE#E 12,800,000% 7 23.44% 23.44%  REER
(“SMSfund”) 2012%127818H
Cayman Islands, USD12,800,000 Investment management
18 December 2012
* RNEBIIAARRGIEEER S * The English name represents the best effort by
BEP S EEEL - management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

HZE2014F12A31A IEFEHR
AEPERENOETZ  TERE
M SMS Capital Co., Ltd#—#H
& AR #308,0007T °

The additions to the interests in joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2014 mainly included
RMB308,000 of further capital injection to SMS Capital
Co., Ltd.

& &1 P 30 (Bl B #%5 B R
BREAEEBEEATE-

No individual financial information of joint ventures was
considered material impact to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP

(CONTINUED)

]

Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s

BMEMT: share of the joint ventures in aggregate is as follows:
2014 2013
AR¥T T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREEEAGBR Summary of balance sheet
mE Current
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 131,331 144,315
HEmeh & E Other current assets
(TEER:) (excluding cash) 54,128 36,459
MBNEEMETE Total current assets 185,459 180,774
LHBE Financial liabilities
(TBEENE SRR (excluding trade payables) 2,500 -
HihmEarm Other current liabilities
(BEENESER) (including trade payables) 42,659 36,864
mEBEESE Total current liabilities 45,159 36,864
IERB Non-current
BE Assets 332,584 355,349
TRAE Financial liabilities 35,582 14,663
EmEaFERRE Total non-current liabilities 35,582 14,663
FEE Net assets 437,302 484,596
% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 67
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12 BREFZEAEMNERE -—AXEE 12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

(&) USING THE EQUITY METHOD - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
b) REeBLEoRZ-K~E&E (b) Interests in joint ventures — Group (Continued)
(4&)
2014 2013
ARBTR ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEHFAGRARK Summary of comprehensive income
WA Revenue 308,880 207,724
ik-0% 3 Depreciation and amortization (13,790) (10,066)
B U = Interest income 2,029 1,869
FMERXE Interest expenses (328) (170)
g (B18), &F|  (Loss)/profits from operations (4,139) 4,016
FrefiAx Income tax expenses (6,969) (5,579)
KEXEBIBRBIEER Post-tax loss from operations (11,108) (1,563)
Hipira s, (BE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) 993 (1,790)
BiIxEEE Total comprehensive loss (10,115) (3,353)
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13 AItHESMEE - AKER 13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
AN ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
A&@E b WG|
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
AR®TRT ARETT AR%®Trn ARET:H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
M1A1H At 1 January 192,026 586,272 11,293 420,461
HE Disposals - (123,433) - (123,433)
BRUERTAEMEE  Transfer of net fair value gains
WaEmATFENEFE previously taken into other
(HisEe2) comprehensive income upon
disposal (Note 22) - (284,827) - (284,827)
SAEMZEYEZAFE  Net far value changes taken to
28 58 (M22) other comprehensive income
(Note 22) 783 14,014 783 (908)
M12A31R At 31 December 192,809 192,026 12,076 11,293
HE2013F12A831HLEFE A& During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
HENPEIEREERER AR ([6 disposed of the investments in the Hong Kong listed shares of
HEDEBLELTROZ2EEREMA Want Want China Holdings Limited (“Want Want”) and other
HEEEMEE BBARLEREL available-for-sale financial assets, and realised gains totalling
At \RE RSB ATEREE RMB284,827,000 (Note 27) through transferring fair value
Brlhak JERKREaEARE gains of the same amounts previously taken to reserve to the
284,827,0007T ( MizE27) ° income statement upon disposal.
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13 AHHEELMEE —AEBENK 13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
AATE (HF) ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

AEBEBzAIHHESREENRATE The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are stated
ABR - WHIIAT at fair value and include the following:
N3] PN
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTR ARETT  AR%®TR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BLrmESH Listed securities
BHET-BE Haisheng Juice - Hong Kong 12,076 11,293 12,076 11,293
FLmESH Unlisted securities
TELIE Wondersun Dairy 180,000 180,000 - -
Hit Others 733 733 - -
180,733 180,733 - -
192,809 192,026 12,076 11,293
BELrm@EFmE Market value of listed securities 12,076 11,293 12,076 11,293
ITHEHCATERBEREEH 2™ The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
BHmEMmMET - on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
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13 AHEESREE-AEEK

mﬁﬁ?ﬁ)

AEEFAREIATELIERNE
AR (T2 ILFLE])9% (20134 :
9% ) ZHEnm STEIUAEXR/RLEHHE
BAEE - B2006F R EEENRHE
KEm-TELIRRETREZAF
BRESERRNERTIZE (H7E3.3)
HEABHZHMEMmMERE -

BRIABTTRHEZ EESIN - Efb Al
HEEREEOAARKEE.

N RXABHEARRERERNEZ
X ARG -

13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The Group holds 9% (2013: 9%) equity interests in B &E)T
LrEIUAERMBR AR (Heillongjang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.") (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC
domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dairy products since 2006. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).

Other than the listed securities which are denominated in
HKD, the remaining available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in RMB.

* The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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14 EERESH -—AEE 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
RIEMSREENBEEMSHREED The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
Wi : income tax liabilities is as follow:

2014 2013
AR T T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFMSHEE Deferred income tax assets
—12{8 A Wik = — Deferred income tax assets to be
BEFSHEE recovered within 12 months 138,104 189,131
—kBE121E A& 4B 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
RIEFTEHEE recovered after more than
12 months 183,777 2,687
321,881 191,718
EIEFTSHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
— 12 A REE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEFSHAR settled within 12 months 40,126 21,435
—BB1I2E AR EE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
RIEFGHAaE settled after more than
12 months 148,719 135,554
188,845 156,989
RIEFTSHEE  F58 Deferred income tax assets, net 133,036 34,729
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EEMBH -—&EEH (&) 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

EEFTSHER ZZEHMT

(CONTINUED)

The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as

follows:
2014 2013
AR®T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
»1A1H At 1 January 34,729 11,959
FFAERE W EE (H5E32) Credited to the consolidated income

statement (Note 32) 98,481 26,079

SRl Charged to other comprehensive income
(KizE22) (Note 22) (174) (3,309)
M12A318 At 31 December 133,036 34,729
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14 BERESH-—FEE (K) 14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP
(CONTINUED)
FRELEMSHEERBENED (K The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
FARFE—FERE S ZEE) AT during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
EEFEBHEE Deferred income tax assets
THLE
SREE
EERERRE RERE Eitlx ATENTH HEFBNE SEEEEH @it
Downward
adjustment
in fair value
of available-
Impairment for-sale
provision of  Depreciation Accrued financial Taxloss  Asset basis
assets of equipment expenses assets benefit difference Total

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'OOO  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBO0O

R2013E1 A1B At 1 January 2013 11,055 4727 124,781 5,165 27,352 - 173,070
(18)/AGANSR (Charged)/credited to the consolidated

income statements (5,958) (2,140) (12,046) - 42,101 - 21,957
MEt2ERE Charged to other comprehensive income - - - (3,309) - - (3,309)
20138128318 At 31 December 2013 5,097 2,587 112,735 1,846 69,453 - 191,718
(hE) /AR kSR (Charged)/credited to the consolidated

income statements (299) 1,513 (3,498 - 114,440 18,175 130,337
NeEt2EKE Charged to other comprehensive income - - - (174 - - (174)
R2014E128318 At 31 December 2014 4,804 4,100 109,237 1,672 183,893 18,175 321,881
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14 BEFRSH -F&H (&)

14 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

(CONTINUED)

EIEFEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
B AFENE RERHAHE @t
Accelerated
Withholding Fair value  depreciation
tax gains of equipment Total
AREFT AREFT ARBEFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R2013%F1 417 At 1 January 2013 17,251 143,860 - 161,111
FAZERREER Credited to the consolidated
income statements - (4,122) - 4,122)
#2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 17,251 139,738 - 156,989
FAZERREER Credited to the consolidated
income statements - (4,135) 35,991 31,856
R2014412A31H At 31 December 2014 17,251 135,603 35,991 188,845

BEFMBEMEEELRIEBEBRARR
ERBHMNERBAMIEBERN SRR
Y HMIEEE T AR A EE I AR
201412 A31H Al A LA I8 B 12 ERR TR
WA 2 T8 &5 18 49 A R #5220,305,000
7T (20134 : A R #167,989,0007T ) &
RIEIEFT 15T & 2 49 A K #55,076,000
70 (20134 + A R #41,997,0007T) °

o RA % A R#29,192,0007t « AR
18,229,0007T A R #5,457,0007T * A
R ¥80,237,0007T & A R #87,190,0007T
ZHRIEBEBR2015FEBEE S AFR
o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB55,076,000 (2013: RMB41,997,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB220,305,000 (2013: RMB167,989,000) as at 31
December 2014 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB29,192,000, RMB18,229,000, RMB5,457,000,
RMB80,237,000 and RMB87,190,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2015.
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15 REFEISMEMIT E—ZAKE 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

S N - GROUP AND COMPANY
(@ &&KE (@) Group
BOYEEBR
AHREE BRREZ
EWE SHEE SREE Foh
Available- Financial

for-sale assets at fair
financial value through

Receivables assets  profit or loss Total

SABERBRMT Assets as per consolidated

MEE balance sheet
R2014F12A31H As at 31 December 2014
AEHESREE  Avallable-for-sale financial assets

(F7E13) (Note 13) - 192,809 - 192,809
RAF(EFBER  Financial assets at fair value

SEZEREE through profit or loss (Note 19)

(F#zE19) - - 86,710 86,710
R E SRR Trade receivables (Note 17)

(FF517) 487,418 - - 487,418
Re R EMEWFIE Deposits and other receivables

(TBEEAT) (excluding prepayments) 868,723 - - 868,723
EHER Time deposits 324,099 - - 324,099
BERALEEY  Cashand cash equivalents

(F#5£20) (Note 20) 1,804,022 - - 1,804,022
@t Total 3,484,262 192,809 86,710 3,763,781
#2013F12A31H As at 31 December 2013
AHEHESREE  Avallable-for-sale financial assets

(P5E13) (Note 13) - 192,026 - 192,026
EREHER Trade receivables (Note 17)

(P5E17) 548,101 - - 548,101
BeREMEYFIE Deposits and other receivables

(TBEREMH) (excluding prepayments) 473,636 - - 473,636
BERBEIER Pledged bank deposits 5,941 - - 5,941
BeRESLEEY  Cashand cash equivalents

(B#5E20) (Note 20) 1,413,929 - - 1,413,929
Bt Total 2,441,607 192,026 - 2,633,633
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

- GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

REE (&) (@) Group (Continued)
RAVEER
BiEcke HERB#EAE
tRERE FTEMNLRER @t
Liabilities Other financial
at fair value liabilities
through measured at
profit or loss ~ amortised cost Total
BEEEERRMRNAR Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet
20145124318 As at 31 December 2014
EREIEAREE Trade and bills payable (Note 23)
(BizE23) - 1,054,204 1,054,204
Hit A BERETER Other payables and accruals
(MeEFLRAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 1,896,678 1,896,678
fTE2mIA (Fiztoe) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 26) 314 - 314
&5 (Mz25) Borrowings (Note 25) - 5,836,368 5,836,368
HibREENFUE (Fi524)  Other long-term payables (Note 24) - 237,985 237,985
@it Total 314 9,025,235 9,025,549
R2013512A31H As at 31 December 2013
BRESERREE Trade and bills payable (Note 23)
(BizE23) - 1,400,968 1,409,968
Hit AT BERETER Other payables and accruals
(TeEFLEAE) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 1,792,877 1,792,877
fTESmIA (Kiztoe) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 26) 43274 - 43274
fEE (FizEas) Borrowings (Note 25) - 6,003,985 6,003,985
HtREEMFUE (H524)  Other long-term payables (Note 24) - 230,971 230,971
@it Total 43,274 9,437,801 9,481,075
B-EEPRZERERAA Uni-Presiient China Holdings Ltd. »] 77
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15 IREHESMWEMIT A —ZKE 15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BRAAR (&) - GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) ZA&AF (b) Company

EhzE THEESHEE Foh
Available-
for-sale
Receivables financial assets Total
BEEERATNEE Assets as per balance sheet
201412 A31H As at 31 December 2014
it HESREE (M313)  Avalable-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - 12,076 12,076
BERTHEAR Loans to subsidiaries 3,607,186 - 3,607,186
e REMEYGE Deposits and other receivables 7,608 - 7,608
NG Due from subsidiaries 999,301 - 999,301
B LB2EEM (Mi20)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 94,828 - 94,828
@t Total 4,708,923 12,076 4,720,999
R2013F 124318 As at 31 December 2013
ARHELREE (H5513)  Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - 11,293 11,293
EXTHEBLR Loans to subsidiaries 2,915,052 - 2,915,052
e REMRNGE Deposits and other receivables 7,476 - 7476
JE Y b B 2 R B Due from subsidiaries 902,370 - 902,370
B RBAZEY (Hi20)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) 94,342 - 94,342
fabs Total 3,919,240 11,293 3,930,533
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15 REHEINEMTAE-TK
BRAXT (&)

15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
- GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) A&7 (&) (b) Company (Continued)
ROATEER
BEEEY  HttREBHRE
SREE ENSRAR @t
Liabilities Other financial
at fair value liabilities
through measured at
profit or loss  amortised cost Total
BESERFTNERE Liabilities as per balance sheet
72014F12A318 As at 31 December 2014
Hit A FBERETER Other payables and accruals
(MeEF2RAR) (excluding non-financial liabilties) - 57,420 57,420
iTESmIA (Kiztoe) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 26) 314 - 314
&5 (Hz25) Borrowings (Note 25) - 5,302,218 5,302,218
@t Total 314 5,359,638 5,359,952
72013%F12A31H As at 31 December 2013
Hit AT BERETER Other payables and accruals
(MeEFLRAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 21,249 21,249
ITESmIA (Kiztoe) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 26) 43274 - 43274
fEE (Fizkas) Borrowings (Note 25) - 5,436,974 5,436,974
@5t Total 43,274 5,458,223 5,501,497
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16 FE-—XKH 16 INVENTORIES - GROUP
2014 2013
AR® T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JR#1 % Raw materials 332,279 448,327
& Work in progress 81,738 81,166
X & Finished goods 496,920 748,373
S5 Consumables 218,369 235,646
1,129,306 1,513,512
R AR W AEERARNREMFT The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
ZIFERAL B ARE15,208,000,000 included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
7t (20134 : A R #15,644,000,000 approximately RMB15,208 million (2013: RMB15,644 million).
JL) °
KRB E2014F12H318 L FE 3L M The Group reversed the inventory provision of approximately
HEEZHAMERFEMS & RMB5,318,000 (2013: recognised inventory provision of
BEGEREENAARKS5318,000 RMB9,507,000) (Note 29) for the year ended 31 December
TL(2013F MR IFERBEARE 2014 in respect of the write-down of inventories to their net
9,507,000t ) (FisE29) - ZEHIEAEL realisable values. These amounts have been included in ‘cost
FFAMERZ [HEKA] - of sales’ in the income statement.
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17 BEREZRF—KEE 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP
2014 2013
ARETR AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWBIE=FE HERN Trade receivables from independent

third parties 470,780 523,045
R B Less: provision for impairment (10,207) (7,115)
JEWBYE=7T8 5B Trade receivables from independent
A third parties, net 460,573 515,930
FE UL BB 5B B AR K Trade receivables from related parties
(K¥7E39(b)) (Note 39(b)) 26,845 32,171
EWE SR FE Trade receivables, net 487,418 548,101
AEBEBERFEFOKEIKRZE The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
FHI (2013F : 60K 290K ) - JEW & usually 60 to 90 days (2013: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
SERFHRR DT analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
2014 2013
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEWE SRR 185 Trade receivables, gross
—90K AR — Within 90 days 457,173 518,024
—91E180K - 91 to 180 days 38,476 35,832
—1812365K — 181 to 365 days 1,742 554
——F N E - Over one year 234 806
497,625 555,216
MR2014F K2013F12A31H I E @ As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, no trade receivables
HERBREZ EKE SRR were past due but not impaired.

% — > ¥ BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 8/]
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17 RRESRX-FX&EHEH (&

AEBERWE SRR ZREEA T
B¥EHE:

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2014 2013
AREBT AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEWE SR a5 Trade receivables, gross
— AR - RVMB 493,680 547,641
—%7T -uUsD 2,242 5,206
—BTT - HKD 1,703 2,369
497,625 555,216

REEH BRESEFEEAERER
FEBE-

R2014F 128318  H AR
101,300,0007T (20135 : AR
97,600,0007) v EW E B EEF LD
WE MRREEL 2 BHESENA
AER#10,200,0007T (20134 : AR#E
7,100,0007T ) ° fARIE K sk R BB HI 2
BBEEHLERTERE SR THIEL
BEERR BT ENRGATM R
EARLEREFPAEBRLUEARBREE -
IS RERERNERR T :

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
RMB101.3 million (2013: RMB97.6 million) were impaired and
the amount of provision for impairment was approximately
RMB10.2 million (2013: RMB7.1 million). The impairment is
firstly assessed individually for individual significant or long
ageing balances, and the remaining balances are grouped for
collective assessment according to their ageing and historical
default rates as these customers are of similar credit risk
characteristics. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

/l 82 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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17 EWWE ZERF—KEE (&) 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP
(CONTINUED)

2014 2013
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE SRR - 8% Trade receivables, gross
— 90K AR — Within 90 days 60,889 60,402
—91E 180K - 91 to 180 days 38,476 35,832
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 1,742 554
——F N E — Over one year 234 806
101,341 97,594
AEBRREERZ [1THAS] PER The Group recognises provision for impairment of trade
JEWE SRR ZMERE BEREZ receivables in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
FEOT statements. The movements in provision for impairment are
as follows:
2014 2013
ARBT ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 7,115 6,346
HEH T R [E] 2 FE Us AR R Receivables written off as uncollectible (591) (23)
JEWE 5 RFUB B G Provision for impairment of trade
(Ff5E29) receivables (Note 29) 3,683 792
M12A31H At 31 December 10,207 7,115
RBE B AEEEREZEERR The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
PAtn EFral 2 JEWE SRR 2 IR A reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as
BLER AEBBESEEMAERRE mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
RYER- security.

% — > ¥ BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 88
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18 FMRIE  Be R H it S
H-AEERAA T

18 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY

biN-3 AT
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REZERRE Guarantee deposits for purchases 338,685 338,685 - -
BT EER KL OHE Prepaid value added tax and
other taxes 387,535 516,758 - -
JE YR BE R 77 3R0E Amounts due from related parties
(HzE39(b)) (Note 39(b)) 369,278 31,388 - -
BRFE-ENT Prepayments — advance payments
{HER 2 B to suppliers 18,583 18,664 - -
HittBRFBRERFIE  Other prepayments and
receivables 194,990 131,231 13,001 18,103
1,309,071 1,036,726 13,001 18,103
 JEENER R Less: non-current portion (52,283) (10,627) (5,393) (10,627)
EEE D Current portion 1,256,788 1,026,099 7,608 7,476

RE 2 ERZEERATELIZEZNE
RIES WIRER2010F11 AR 2
EEETELIAEEEZDD - BR
e AR #287,020,0007T £ 18742015
FoRAWZ BAEREBERE 2RKHERX
R2015F B8 -

REER BNFE R REMER
RRHBREFEEE QN FERS-

184
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The guarantee deposits for purchases represent deposits
paid to Wondersun Dairy to secure the purchases of the
milk powder produced by Wondersun Dairy pursuant
to an agreement entered into in November 2010. The
guarantee deposits of RMB287,020,000 had been received
subsequently in February 2015. The others are repayable
during 2015 according to a pre-determined timetable.

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values as at the balance
sheet dates.

#i— ¥ EER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BATEZBERSCRZEH
EE-XKH

19

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP

2014 2013
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ITHESER-HABEHE  Listed treasury products — held-for-trading
—rh - PRC 86,710 -
TTERERZTE Market value of listed treasury products 86,710 -

BAVEEBRBEELEZEREER
Ben8XRERIRERD] -

BATEFBERTEZEREED
FEEDAELBRERA [Hiblzs—
FEE ] (KYsE27) °

PrELmEBEMNAFEIERE
REBRTSRFHREMEE -

ReERBESEEY EHEX
REERBTER-FEER
NN

20

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within ‘investing activities” in the statement of cash
flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other gains — net’ in the income
statement (Note 27).

The fair value of the listed treasury products is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
TIME DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY

PN NN

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
AR¥TR ARBTL AR®TR AREFTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BERETRFE RS Cash at bank and on hand 2,128,121 1,419,870 94,828 94,342
B EAER Less: Time deposits (324,099) - - -
EEBRITER Pledged bank deposits - (5,941) - -
BERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,804,022 1,413,929 94,828 94,342

R20145F12A318  REBFEREITH
TR E R #1947 X 50.60E
(20134 : 0.84E) -

As at 31 December 2014, the effective weighted average rate
on deposits of the Group placed with banks and deposits of
the Group was 0.60% (2013: 0.84%) per annum.

@ — % FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20

BeRESEEY THER
REHEHRTER-FEBK
AT (&)

R2014F12A31H  AEEMNEHF
A AR #324,099,0007T (20134 -
&) REHE A=A L #2015
FRIH-

HR2014F12A31H BB ITER A
FRIBITIEAZHASEREEEKK
B Pl 0pEE

M2014F12A31H HEe LB 5B
YA T E ¥ E -

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
TIME DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has time deposits of
RMB324,099,000 (2013: Nil) which had terms with original
maturity over three months and will be returned in 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, the pledged bank deposits
represented deposits at banks pledged as security for the
issue of letter of credit facilities and bills of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

N3] NG|

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTR  ARETRT ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- ARE - RMB 1,575,061 1,157,889 618 4
—ET -USD 222,845 249,294 94,105 94,120
—BT -HKD 2,183 2,372 105 218
—Hft - Others 3,933 4,374 - -
1,804,022 1,413,929 94,828 94,342

R2014F12A31H THFEH AN T E
BEEHE

As at 31 December 2014, time deposits are denominated in
the following currencies:

N | VNG|

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
AR®TrR ARBETFT ARETR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
-AR¥ -RMB 323,325 - - -
-ET -UsD - - - _
—BT - HKD - - - -
—Hfb - Others 774 - - -
324,099 - - -

/I 86 #— ¥ P EZERBR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 RERBASEEY EHEFRX 20
REBEHARTER - FTEEK

21

NG )

MN2013F12A310 B/ ITER

AARBEEE-

ARBEMAFSARERME AR
RBpZ 8% - BARE LIS EINE K
E R B R ONE S o B B R M 2 S
PEE " 1 AR B K AR 5 AT AR AR

BRARKRGZER -FAEER 21

ANV

(@) BRAKERHEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
TIME DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, pledged bank deposits are
denominated in RMB.

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT - GROUP AND COMPANY

(@) Share capital and share premium account

EE
Authorised

EERHA [N BREHE

Number of Share capital

ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to

FAT ARETFT

HKD'000 RMB’000

M2013F1A1RE At 1 January 2013 il
2014128318 31 December 2014 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BROIRBR
Issued and fully paid
RBEAE B kafed  RORER CHI
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium

shares capital equivalent to account Total

TEn ARETRT AR¥TR  AR%TR
HKD’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#20145181A At 1 January 2014 3,599,445,000 35,994 34,047 2,243,980 2,278,027
BILER Issue of ordinary shares 719,889,000 7,199 5717 2,585,919 2,591,636
20145127318 At 31 December 2014 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

% — > ¥ R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. z] 87
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21 BEARKRMDEEER-4&£BEK 21 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
ACCOUNT - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

AT (&)

(@ BAERMDZER(E)

M2014F6 7 « ANAF SRR -
i #%4.56/% 7L 10201445 A 30
H(EE bt #ikaat s A )
BRAESKRMHIKRAEEREITT,

889,000/% #1 i% {7 °

(b) BBRESTE

KA REMRE2007F11 528
HreEEAZERMBBIER
A ([5ZaT &) - BEZF
A TETIRNDEHRTEB
i#352,681,0000% @ B A 2 &) 7
2007F 128178 (B AR & &5
RESZFT EThE B ) ATt ikme
HH10% - ZFtE B TERLE
BiEz —BEBHANFREAHE
BETSHBE20% BB A
BB B BB AR B BRpR TN 15
DPR—FERTBBBTFZET
BB IFEE M EE2017F12A16

E o

RRBZA AL -

(a)

Share capital and share premium account
(Continued)

In June 2014, the Company completed a rights issue
that resulted in the issue of 719,889,000 new ordinary
shares at HKD4.56 each on the basis of 1 share for
every 5 shares held on 30 May 2014, the record date
for the determination of the above rights issue.

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution passed on
23 November 2007. The total number of shares which
may be issued under the Scheme must not exceed
352,681,000 shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of shares issued by the Company
as at 17 December 2007 (ie. the listing date of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange). The
general vesting period for the options granted under the
Scheme is limited to 20% at each anniversary of grant
date and should be a period to commence not less than
one year and not to exceed 10 years from the date of
the grate of the option. The Scheme will remain in force
until 16 December 2017.

Up to 31 December 2014, no share options have been
granted under the Scheme.

/l 88 #— ¥ P EZERBR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 Hivf@E—AEBRALDQT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

COMPANY
PINS Group
EAfifE  ATERR EERE BEFEAN At
Capital Fair value Statutory Retained
reserves reserves reserves earnings Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2013F1 18 2 &84 Balance at 1 January 2013 1,723,949 261,312 607,643 2,800,137 5,393,041
FEHF Profit for the year - - - 916,412 916,412
REETREESBEERS Transfer of fair value gains
SR ARBEZLTERE previously taken to reserve to
BREZNHR (H5E13) income statement upon disposal
of available-for-sale financial
assets (Note 13) - (284,827) - - (284,827)
AfHEeREE D TERNG Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets
— 8% (M313) - gross (Note 13) - 14,014 - - 14,014
-8 (M314) — tax (Note 14) - (3,309) - - (3,309)
BIZEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 137,867 (137,867) -
T 20126 2 IR &, Dividends relating to 2012, paid (171,190) - - - (171,190)
R2013F 12831 2 &6 Balance at 31 December 2013 1,552,759 (12,810) 745,510 3,578,682 5,864,141
FREN Profit for the year - - - 285,537 285,537
HNEcREE A TETSE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - -
— @8 (M#13) - gross (Note 13) - 783 - - 783
— BB (hri4) - tax (Note 14) - (174) - - (174)
BIZEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 110,292 (110,292) -
Zft2013F 2k B Dividends relating to 2013, paid (183,212) - - - (183,212)
R2014F128318 2 &6 Balance at 31 December 2014 1,369,547 (12,201) 855,802 3,753,927 5,967,075

@ — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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220 BEgE -—KEBRAEAAT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

(&) COMPANY (CONTINUED)
PiN/NE Company
BABH  ATVERE BREA CH
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ARBTR ARETT ARETTT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2013F1 B1A 2 &8k Balance at 1 January 2013 1,960,728 266,181 53,864 2,280,773
EFRM Profit for the year - - 136,160 136,160
REERHEESR Transfer of fair value gain previously
BERKEREA taken to reserve to income
BEATENS statement upon disposal of
BRENEE (M13) available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 13) - (284,827) - (284,827)
HEESHEEL Fair value gains on available-for-sale
AEEMEG (HFE13) financial assets (Note 13) - (908) - (908)
FIF2012F 2R 8 Dividends relating to 2012, paid (171,190) - - (171,190)
MN2013F12A31B 248  Balance at 31 December 2013 1,789,538 (19,554) 190,024 1,960,008
FEBE Loss for the year - - (111,737) (111,737)
IHEESREEL Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NEEFE (EE13) financial assets (Note 13) - 783 - 783
T 2013FE 28 Dividends relating to 2013, paid (183,212) - - (183,212)
R2014F12A318 2 %%  Balance at 31 December 2014 1,606,326 (18,771) 78,287 1,665,842

/l 90 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 HihfE —ExEBRA2AT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND

(&)

(@

(c)

A BER

ARARNBABBREREART
By LRz ARREEITE A
RESR LT 2EBZTE AR
FZDREAERFRE -

RRASHEEREENR  ZFH
ABBRA 0K T AR A B &
BA-

DN ERE

AEERAFEREREIHREE
EMEERAFEED 2B

EEME

R B SRS BRI E
HAR R AERIES
BLAT AL & 5T B TS R R AR o
#1005 FM CIEE 88 T I 45 2
o REHATIRR ) IR R RRE
B - FURSRE R TR T B 6
UEES

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(@)

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of Cayman Island,
such contribution surplus is distributable to the equity
holders of the Company.

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.
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220 B E-—KEBRAEAAT 22 OTHER RESERVES - GROUP AND
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(%)

() EEfkE (&)

ERINBBELCENMAELREE
MARZE T BB AR - EETE
FEBRREMN DR AREAE
wmAE R 2 10%BIEEE BB A
e EEAERHATESEIQA
Z B A50%A £ BIBAE

i — R - LS

EEREFES®

ZBWiEHE  WERR AU —E L
1] 80 Bk 1% 05 I I8 BE T 48 R I
RBESLEBREE (ERFI
BEKEDERFEMKILA S EH
BAR ZEEBEFS2HIBHE
Al A & BOATE BR B IR 4 F By —
FE L1 2 BB ACEE R 18 o

AEBBRABLREARBHA
AIMEE BARANEELEN

EIRRER-

23 BERNEZKRM

RE-X&EE

()

Statutory reserves (Continued)

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as Sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.

23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES - GROUP

2014 2013
AR¥T ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FERTE SRR Trade payables
—-BYE=H - to independent third parties 875,956 1,240,400
— A 757 (M9339(b) ) - to related parties (Note 39(b)) 178,248 169,568
1,054,204 1,409,968
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23 ENESERFNLEE —A&E 23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES - GROUP

(&) (CONTINUED)
HEFBRFAEE 2 EZAHEBE A30 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
RKEASK - ENEBEZRIR IR DTN 30 to 45 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
T follows:
2014 2013
AR¥T ARMEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JETE SR Trade payables
—30K AR — Within 30 days 796,153 1,113,785
—31E90K — 31 to 90 days 173,610 208,835
—912180K - 91 to 180 days 66,971 69,612
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 10,963 11,720
——FLAE — Over 1 year 6,507 6,016
1,054,204 1,409,968
EREZEAREBEBRIBDUARE Majority of the trade and bills payables are denominated in
E-BECEMEREERAREART RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as
BEE- at the balance sheet dates.
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24 HiENFTERESFER -2 24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS -

SERZEXRQT GROUP AND COMPANY
biS-c ARFH
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEMNR Advance receipts from customers 738,002 711,716 - -
HEFRER Deposits from suppliers and
XHES customers 384,713 417,721 - -
RERESAS Accruals for promotion and
HEGTER advertising expenses 757,520 711,094 - -
FESBREMNTE Payables for purchase of equipment 563,935 390,262 1,758 12,087
Bt TE RAEF Salary and welfare payables 299,738 368,928 1,376 2,045
HittERFBERETER  Other payables and accruals 520,939 545,954 55,662 8,262
3,264,847 3,145,675 58,796 23,294
W FERNEE S Less: non-current portion (237,985) (230,971) - -
ENEAZR & Current portion 3,026,862 2,914,704 58,796 23,294
REEH HtENFEREFERZ The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
EHEEEAFERE- approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

/I 94 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

VNS b N
Group Company
2014 20183 2014 2013
AR¥TR AR®Tr  ARETr ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FEH Non-current
RITIEE  EIRIE Bank borrowings, unsecured
(Mizta) (Note (a)) 1,561,569 4,101,644 1,511,393 4,101,644
BITEE BIEA Notes payable (Note (b))
(M) 3,000,000 1,000,000 3,000,000 1,000,000
4,561,569 5,101,644 4,511,393 5,101,644
B R B Less: current portion of long-term
FITEENHLS unsecured bank borrowings (281,474) - (281,474) -
axs Total 4,280,095 5,101,644 4,229,919 5,101,644
B8 Current
RHRTEE Short-term bank borrowings
—EEA unsecured 1,274,799 902,341 790,825 335,330
m: REEER Add: current portion of long-term
FITBEENHLH unsecured bank borrowings 281,474 - 281,474 -
1,556,273 902,341 1,072,299 335,330
fEE @& Total borrowings 5,836,368 6,003,985 5,302,218 5,436,974

(a)

M2014%F 12 A31 8 & &K
HIERBHBITEHEEARE
1,561,569,0007T (2013F : AR
#4.101,644,0007C) T E B HEIR
BARARHEEIVZEKEAE
HEEma ([BEH=z]) T]BH
221,000,000F T (HER AR
1,352,299,0007L)SR1TE K - iR
ERmEmz AEEERSREE
250,000,000F LW A F B B &
BE - ARFEERE ~&EEE
EVESMERERERBZEB12A
S1THMEELEHEEERERD
128 BBEESHEAERD
RITEE -

#— ¥ P EZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The non-current bank borrowings, unsecured as at
31 December 2014 of RMB1,561,569,000 (2013:
RMB4,101,644,000), mainly included bank loans
amounting to USD221,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,352,299,000) that were drawn
down under a joint loans facility agreement (“Facility
Agreement”) entered into by the Company and a
syndicate of banks. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement,
the Group was granted a five-year term loan facility
amounting to USD250,000,000. The directors of the
Company are of the view that the Group has the
intention and discretion to roll over the borrowings as
at 31 December for at least twelve months after the
balance sheet date under the Facility Agreement and
accordingly classified the borrowings as non-current
bank borrowings.
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25 BE-AEERAQF (&

(b) R2013F6 A KR AIREBETT
KEBEAARKAVETLZI5EE
B-ZEAH=F Wi RK2016

FoHA6HZHEE -

R2014F1 8 - KRARIR B BT
KezEAEARBI0ETTZ3.6EE
B-ZHRAH=F Wi#&K2017

FIH23EZBUER -

MR20145F8H ARG D AR E
BOIASERAARBSET
3.5ERIEZERE - FEHAIA
M=% kA% R2017F8H28
HN2019F8 A28H 2 #{E & -

AEERARBEEZERPAOT

25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)

In June 2013, the Company issued 3.5% notes at a
principal value of RMB1 billion in Hong Kong. The notes
have a three years term and will be fully repayable by 6
June 2016.

In January 2014, the Company issued 3.6% notes at
a principal value of RMB1 billion in Taiwan. The notes
have a three years term and will be fully repayable by 23
January 2017.

In August 2014, the Company issued 3.5% and 3.9%
notes at principal value of RMBO.5 billion and RMBO0.5
billion respectively in Taiwan. The notes have a three
and five years term and will be fully repayable by 28
August 2017 and 28 August 2019, respectively.

The Group’s and the Company’s borrowings were repayable

as follows:
A%H LY

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
AR®TRT ARETT AR®TR ARETRH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—FHRA Less than 1 year 1,556,273 902,341 1,072,299 335,330
—EMF Between 1 and 2 years 2,127,120 942,231 2,076,944 942,231
MERF Between 2 and 5 years 2,152,975 4,159,413 2,152,975 4,159,413
BERSE Total borrowings 5,836,368 6,003,985 5,302,218 5,436,974
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25 EE-AXKEERAQTF (&)

EER - EEZEREEEEAFEM

o

t X

AEBRAAT 2 EEERER T
B EHE

25 BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values as at the balance sheet dates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings were denominated in the following currencies:

XEE AR
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRT ARETT AR®TR ARETEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 3,453,310 2,268,340 3,391,560 2,268,340
e usb 2,383,058 3,735,645 1,910,658 3,168,634
5,836,368 6,003,985 5,302,218 5,436,974
EHREBZERINEFHAEHT| 0 The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
D balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
R5E NG|
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTR ARETT AR%®TR ARETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BITIEE - B Bank borrowing, unsecured
-AR¥ - RMB 3.56% 3.57% 3.52% 3.57%
—XT -USD 1.23% 1.24% 1.21% 1.23%
ANES:S Notes payable
-AR¥ - RMB 3.60% 3.50% 3.60% 3.50%
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25 BE-AEERALF (&) 25

AEBERARBEAE TIIRERZR

BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The Group and Company have the following undrawn bank

TREREE: borrowing facilities:
K&EE PN
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTR  ARETRL ARETR ARET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REAE: At floating rate:
—ENEH - Expiring within one year 6,389,175 4,640,087 3,253,990 2,405,410
— &, F3IE ~ Expiring beyond one year 1,881,407 1,350,263 1,522,407 1,233,263

26 PTEEMIAE-FAEERAELD 26
S

8,270,582 5,990,350 4,776,398 3,638,673

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
GROUP AND COMPANY

b3 RAH

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
AR¥TR ARBTRT  AR¥TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BfE: Liabilities:
—EEINESL — Forward foreign exchange

contracts 314 43,274 314 43,274

FA-ARARILEHINES K B
BHOTETR YESBREREES
BfE-

M2014F128381H - M AR Z R H
INE S 492 %% A2 5 /A140,000,000
% 7¢ (20134 : 477,000,000% 7T) ° £
[H AR 1S —F 58] (ME27) R @R
AR BIRE B A R314,0005T (2013
F: ANR®43,274,0007T) °

During the year, the Company entered into forward foreign
exchange contracts which were non-hedging derivatives and
were classified as current assets or liabilities.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2014 were
USD140,000,000 (2013: USD477,000,000) and an unrealised
loss of RMB314,000 (2013: RMB43,274,000) was recognised
in “other gains — net” (Note 27).
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27 HitbFE—F8E

27 OTHER GAINS - NET

2014 2013
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEYE BELEEFRS - Gains on disposal of property,
SHEE (P FE39(a)i) ) plant and equipment, net (Note 39(a)(ii)) 162,079 190,403
HEGHEELREERS  Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(FI3E13) financial assets (Note 13) - 284,827
BERAFEEREBERILEZ Derivative financial instruments fair value
MESHBITA through profit or loss
—REREE — Unrealised losses (314) (43,274)
EHh Others (3,682) 1,397
158,083 433,353
28 HA A 28 OTHER INCOME
2014 2013
AR¥F T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 R AR Sales of raw materials 31,019 110,359
N Subsidy income 63,922 81,455
BFme () Government grants (Note) 24,955 236,064
HEME BER Rental income from lease of property,
BEARILEYZE 2 plant and equipment and investment
EEALON properties 84,850 57,671
AR UW A (H5E39()) Consultation service income (Note 39(a)) 46,386 23,041
AHEESREE L Dividend income from available-for-sale
A% B A financial assets - 5,684
Efh Others 15,121 1,421
266,253 515,695
M Note:

TR 468 B W A 45 P YCER Fl R B 2 () 4 05
BT & e BN 75 SR - (E R A S B
Y /8 2 B 357 EL P A b [ A S SR AR
BBAEY B 3 o 52 BUAT 8 BY B 4B AR
TREM & B IR R EK R R - BT R
ERGERERERREMBKAL
BB FREAERER D E -

The income from government grants represented immediate financial
support subsidy received from various local governments in the PRC
as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their contributions to the
economy and development of the regions in which the subsidiaries
are located. Such government grants were unconditional and with no
future commitment to be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other
income’ in the consolidated income statements and comparative
figures have been reclassified accordingly.

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 ERFME 29 EXPENSES BY NATURE
BERHEEKRA HERTISEER
T ITBRAXREMASZ 2ER
T

Expenses included in cost of sales, seling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and other expense are
analysed as follows:

2014 2013
AR TR AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTREMEL - B Raw materials, packaging materials,
SEMREBNEG consumables and purchased
commodity used 12,847,671 13,710,213
KmFEEH Changes in inventories of finished goods 302,405 (193,089)
IMBEERE Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 2,048 193,739
RIEMREESER Promotion and advertising expenses 2,350,078 2,872,955
BImAMY BIEEEZFHH Employee benefit expenses, including
(FF3E30) directors’ emoluments (Note 30) 3,028,652 3,029,623
EHER Transportation expenses 1,049,280 1,085,568
T (5 A iR 8 (P RE6) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) 57,649 40,178
M BMERIREBRTE Depreciation of property, plant and
(M$3E7) equipment (Note 7) 1,338,199 1,051,457
"EMERE (KIFF8) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8) 11,913 6,714
mpEEEE (M) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 5,286 5,480
BFEEig Operating lease in respect of buildings 194,867 198,955
WERT  MEB R City construction tax, property tax and
B E A other tax surcharges 249,654 239,669
BEYE - BE R Reversal of provision for impairment of
B (FET) property, plant and equipment (Note 7) (27)
JEUE ZERF 2 mEREE Provision for impairment of trade
(MI5E17) receivables (Note 17) 792
(FERERED) /W (Reversal of provision)/write-down of
GFEEEIRFE inventories to net realisable value
(MF3E16) (Note 16) (5,318) 9,507
% BRI B & Auditors’ remunerations
—ZEBRTE - Audit services 6,802 6,354
—EZEIRT — Non-audit services 700 700
HAtb Others 1,096,603 1,086,824
HEEt Total 22,540,157 23,345,612
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EITEANAX BEESEEHM 30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2014 2013
ARE TR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IEEH® Wages and salaries 2,408,311 2,405,286
BRE REMEEETR Pension and other social welfare
(EREHERETED (defined contribution plan) 376,965 349,137
BETIBE&EREEET Staff quarters and housing benefit 102,249 92,424
H @ 7 Other benefits 141,127 182,776
3,028,652 3,029,623
(@) ES=FH (a) Directors’ emoluments
REE2014F K2013F12 A31 During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
HILFEE AARZES 24 m the remuneration of directors of the Company is as
T follows:
EEnS e HeRia EHORE ok
Salary and Travelling
Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance Total

ARBTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20144 2014
HITES Executive directors
BELRE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien ( &% %) 48 1,794 5 1,847
FRELE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (E45%) 42 2,606 5 2,653
PREDSE LA Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREL/E) 36 778 5 819
EHTEZR Non-executive directors
WEELE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (#& 4)

(F3E@) (Note (a) 25 - - 25
WEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (#[&% ) 81 - - 81
BREEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (f52%4) 37 - - 37

BUFRNTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (R 2% ) 220 - - 220
BlEEAE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (B123%) 220 - - 220
SRR LA Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (155 %) 184 - - 184
KREELE Mr. Peter Lo (B3 2) 220 - - 220
1,113 5,178 15 6,306
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30 EIRANPEX - BEEEEHMHM 30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
(#8) INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) ES=FHM (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
BEfA e  HEREA ERRE k)
Salary and Travelling
Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance Total
ARETT ARBTR ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
20135 2013
HIEE Executive directors
ERRAE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (&% %) 49 2,282 3 2,334
FERELE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (48 ) 43 3,157 3 3,203
BREIE L4 Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (FREL/E)
R (Note (b)) 14 919 2 935
FMTES Non-executive directors
RERLE Mr. Kao Chin-Yen (=& &)

(M%) (Note () 48 - - 48
MEERE Mr. Lin Chang-Sheng (#&4) 67 - 2 69
HWEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (#}£ 3 ) 80 - 2 82
BRHEEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (& 5244) 37 - - 37

BUFNITES Independent non-executive
directors
BREEtE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FRE ) 219 - - 219
BLESE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (33{Z3%) 219 - - 219
BRRLE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (%2 ) 183 - - 183
REERAE Mr. Peter Lo (& £) 219 - - 219
1,178 6,358 12 7,548
B 3 - Note:
(a) H2014%E5816HEE- (a) Retired on 16 May 2014.
(o) HA201348HA10BESEF- (o)  Appointed on 10 August 2013.
(c) H2013%E8H10B BT » (c)  Resigned on 10 August 2013.
FRATEMESREE L NESE There were no arrangements under which a director
BEHRETMAES - waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
THEREEESTETRETS There were no special emoluments to the directors for
FEEER B o their appointments, retirement or resignation.
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30 EIRAAX BEESHMN

(&)

(b) EERESHMAL

HZE2014F12A31BEFE 2K
SETEERFMATBEERS
(2013F -MA)EE HFHE
REXFE5 2D RER - R EF
N FH e =% (20134 -
&) BREF AT ZEHHES 0

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
included two (2013: two) directors, whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2013:
three) individuals during the year are as follows:

T
2014 2013

HA#H & EH206- Basic salaries, housing allowances,

H A ERE R EWMF = other allowances and benefits in kind

(AR¥TFIT) (RMB’000) 3,371 3,794
#HE - In the band of;
1,000,001 L& HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7C (1HE (equivalent to RMB786,200 to

R AREE786,2007T 2 RMB1,572,400)

AR#1,572,4007T) 3 3

% — > % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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31 MEWA-FHE 31 FINANCE INCOME - NET
2014 2013
AR® T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWA-BEREE Finance income — interest income on
ZLEW 2R BWA cash and cash equivalents 105,233 76,504
b 5 Yz ) 58 Net foreign exchange gains - 102,617
105,233 179,121
BEZAMERAY Interest expenses on borrowings (162,399) (93,610)
[ 5 B8 F 58 Net foreign exchange losses (20,380) -
B EEBREEZ Less: amounts capitalized on
BEAR{beHE qualifying assets 35,397 9,665
(147,382) (83,945)
BE (KA, WA —F5E Finance (cost)/income — net (42,149) 95,176
32 FIEHAX 32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2014 2013
AR%T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHMEH Current income tax
—-BEBEERMN 2 E8TEE  — Current tax on profit for the year 227,622 225,715
EEFTISH (MIFE14) Deferred income tax (Note 14) (98,481) (26,079)
129,141 199,636
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(a)
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B RRERSEPTEH (TR
Bl

RANFE - 75 B K B AR ST R BT B
NABIR25% (20134 : 25% ) HY
HREBRDCEME -

RER AL - B AR T/ E R E
AR BF BE[2011]5855% [ B 7 %
A B e 70 56 K 7 3 BB A R B UK
MR - AT K
TWBRFRBIBRSAMN 2 ETE
BHEEXEHCARBEEEZA
15%EBEERE-RAEELH+HEH
ilE/NE b it e ke S 5 VAR
REEEEXES WEEEZAL
M15%E BB o

HAFREH

ARARBEFASESE QDAL
EREEMRLSERREBERA
A Eit NRAREREENFES
BEMREH-

FEERBBEIMKLHNE
NAIEREMBIMNES B A
17%%16.5% (2013F : 17% K&
16.5% ) B AN FT 15 Fi ©

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Mainland China enterprise income tax (“EIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject
to EIT at rate of 25% (2013: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs”( B4 %% [2011]5855 %8
PR AE P8 5 A 7 3 B A B B SR B B R A |
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2013: 17% and 16.5%) respectively.
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32 B (&)

(b)

206

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

HprEs (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
7N & B BR P15 B AT 4 M) B iR The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
HEAREGHERBEN ZEERX differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
25% (201834 : 25% )5t E 2w using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2013:
HBEBEZZEWT: 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2014 2013
ARBTR ARMEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
bR BT 1S %4 A& A Profit before income tax 414,678 1,116,048
L BATE B & Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
PR ZBIA in the PRC 103,670 279,012
THEE BB E:  Tax effects of:
E@EETHBEAR Preferential tax rates on the profits of
A BERE certain subsidiaries (8,365) (31,181)
AL KRERZ Utilisation of previously unrecognized
MIEEE tax losses (2,525) (16,467)
RIERBIELFBH  Tax losses for which no deferred
BEZIAESE income tax asset was recognized 28,621 22,668
BARBBA Income not subject to tax (21,244) (56,144)
AR HE B 2 Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 28,984 1,748
FriS i = Income tax expense 129,141 199,636
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32 FiIEHmMx (&)

33

(b) EHFrEs (&)

FEEMEEWET D ZMER
THIT:

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(o) Other income tax (Continued)

The income tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income is as follows:

2014 2013
BB BUAXH BRBi % Bhal  BUEXH Bk
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax  Tax charge After tax

ARBTR ARMTRT AR®TR AREBTT ARMTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HETHEESE  Transfer of fair value gain, net of tax,

BERBLA previously taken to reserve to
FAGEL income statement upon disposal
ATEREG of available-for-sale financial
(BR#FE) assets
BRENGR

AHHESBAE  Net fair value gains from available-
AFEFHEG for-sale financial assets

2 AR Other comprehensive income

EREAESR Deferred income tax (Note 14)
(P7E14)

ARREEFRAEGRT

FARRA B BREROAND A EE
FAABGEZNABBOARYE
111,737,0007C (20135 & F A R
#136,160,0007T) (FizE22) o

- - - (284827) - (284827)

783 (174) 609 14,014 (3,309) 10,705

783 (174) 609  (270813) (3309 (274,129
(174) (3,309)

33

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of a loss of approximately RMB111,737,000 (2013: a
profit of approximately RMB136,160,000) (Note 22).
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34 BREF

ESRIN

BERERNBNDZEERNRAERR
B ARG E R E BT S BRINEF

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

HEETE - average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2014 2013
NATETEA AFEWEEF  Profit attributable to equity holders of
(AR¥TIT) the Company (RMB’000) 285,537 916,412
BT R NI 8 Weighted average number of ordinary
(F%) shares in issue (thousands) 3,976,154 3,599,445
SRERAF Basic earnings per share
(BRAR®BE) (RMB per share) 7.18% cents 25.46% cents

35

HRARATEBTESERR WE Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
REERNEGRERBHN —2- share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.
iR E 35 DIVIDENDS
2014 2013
AR®T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERIRN KRR B EFKR Proposed final dividend of
Timk AR #1.3229 RMB1.322 cents
(20135 : AR ¥5.09257) (2013: RMB5.092 cents)
per ordinary share 57,107 183,282

R2014F K2013F KRB GEE
20134 F2012F12A31HIEFEED
& BB B 9 Rl A AR 183,212,000
T(BRARKES50029) K ARE

The dividends paid by the Company in 2014 and 2013 for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 amounted
to RMB183,212,000 (RMB5.092 cents per share) and
RMB171,190,000 (RMB4.756 cents per share) respectively.

171,190,000t (i AR 4.756

AN

7]

) o

R2015F5 415 BITZRERBFARE
EEEFBIREEZE2014F12A31H 1t
FEZHREBRAREK1.3229 (
B ARS57,107,0007T) ° Itk 2 B 7% 3R

RABRBRUFERMNBE
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A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 of RMB1.322 cents per share, amounting to a total
dividend of RMB57,107,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 15 May 2015. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

=
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2014 2013
ARBF T ARBTIT

RMB’000 RMB’000
B P15 B¢ B A Profit before income tax 414,678 1,116,048
HTYSBEEL 2 A Adjustments for:
—AE=REARZ — Share of profit of investments
JEAG 1% & % F accounted for using equity method (84,977) (88,445)
—HETHNESH — Gains on disposal of available-for-
BERG (M&E27) sale financial assets (Note 27) - (284,827)
— T H(F RS (FI5E6) - Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 6) 57,649 40,178
—ME - BEREREITE — Depreciation of property,
(MIEE7) plant and equipment (Note 7) 1,338,199 1,051,457
—EYETE (H:Es) — Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 8) 11,913 6,714
—fEREERH (M) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 5,286 5,480
—HEWE BENEED - Gains on disposal of property,
M1 (fsE27) plant and equipment (Note 27) (162,079) (190,4083)
— B O BENMEERE - Reversal of provision for impairment
BiEED (HE7) of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) (15) ©7)
—FEEE, (HER) — Reversal of/(write-down)
] BIREE, inventories to net realisable value
(Bm=) (M5E16) (Note 16) (5,318) 9,507
—RUNE ZERFR AR E — Provision for impairment of trade
(FF=E17) receivables (Note 17) 3,683 792
—HMEZH (FFEE31) — Interest expenses (Note 31) 127,002 83,945
—E s (MI7E31) — Foreign exchange gains (Note 31) 20,380 (102,617)
—PTEEBM T ARAFEEL - Fair value loss on derivative financial
(MIzE27) instruments (Note 27) 139 43,274
—AHEEEREEL — Dividend income from available-for-
AR S WA (HI5E28) sale financial assets (Note 28) - (5,684)
1,726,540 1,685,392
BEESEE: Changes in working capital:
—BEIEITERK — Decrease/(increase) in pledged
A (g ) bank deposits 5,941 (1,277)
—FEUE IR — Decrease/(increase) in trade
A (1) receivables 57,591 (36,291)
—TENFIE e REMm — (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
FEWR FRIE () R deposits and other receivables (12,608) 234,082
—H b IERNEAE W GRTER 4> — Decrease in other non-current
receivables (12,088) (820)
—TFERD, () - Decrease/(increase) in inventories 389,524 (238,080)
—EBRNEZERERE — Decrease in trade and bills payables
e (355,764) (31,976)
—HibEARIELETER - Decrease in other payables and
Ve accruals (94,132) (25,902)
—E b FEENEAEF FRIEHE AN — Increase in other non-current
payables 7,014 33,841
LEEA RS Cash generated from operations 1,712,018 1,619,469
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36 HEELX2EE (F) 36 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
RRERERT LEVE HELK In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
BB RERRE: property, plant and equipment comprise:
2014 2013
ARBTR ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREDFE (7)) Net book amount (Note 7) 405,398 590,008
HEWME WERE&EN Gains on disposal of property,
1S (FsE27) plant and equipment (Note 27) 162,079 190,403
EfhfE W E KFRIA Other receivables from buyer (242,760) -
E M RIE R ERT B R Other payables and accruals - 84,728

LEME BERSEEBEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

Fri55%38 plant and equipment 324,717 865,139
EBRERF Non-cash transactions
MR2014FEWEEIR SR 5H ABBE The principal non-cash transaction in 2014 is the acquisition
EEEMEBAaEARK173,673,0007T of non-current assets by assuming directly related liabilities
WHEIEMBN B EE - with amount of RMB173,673,000.
37 MBEREN 37 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
2014 2013
AREBT T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RETEE T ZER Guarantees to a related party 48,927 79,808
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BBRERRELH (&)

AEBREBL AR SEBRMN ZIR
TEERBEMERMER - RK2014
F12A318  SEBRH EIRBEZER
ROBTEERIIURERE B84
AR ®48,927,0007T (20134F : AR M
79,808,0007T ) °

HRAEERSHHBEREONAF
BEYREAX - 8 ERER A I R
RAERELD -

I

(@) BAREE

TEEEBEYE BERRENE
AAEFENT

37

38

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

The Group provides guarantees for the bank borrowings and
finance leases of Jinmailang Corporate, an associate of the
Group. As at 31 December 2014, Jinmailang Corporate has
drawn down bank borrowings and entered into finance leases
under such guarantee with total amount of RMB48,927,000
(2013: RMB79,808,000).

The financial guarantee contract had not been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group
considered that the fair value of the guarantee contract was
insignificant.

COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

The Group’s capital commitments in respect of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2014 2013

ARBT T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BRI AR BB Contracted but not provided for 637,739 850,191

M2014F12A318H AR 7 I &
R & AN K o

There is no capital commitment of the Company as at
31 December 2014.

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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38 &IE (4E) 38 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) KEFHERIE (b) Operating lease commitments
AEBERABA - The Group is the lessee:
AEBEFZBTAIHEOEEHZR The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
MAEF AT EEMNEEHE agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
T T 7N 5 B R R E 5 ) S R AE lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
SHRENT leases are as follows:
2014 2013
ARET R ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
THB—F Not later than 1 year 42,802 23,589
BB —FERBBAF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 38,042 34,710
iR F Later than 5 years 103,038 105,137
183,882 163,436
AEBFEBEHHAN The Group is the lessor:
AEBEETAIHEEA L EHE W The Group leases out investment properties, plant
FEINHEREME  BENE&E- and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
ZERNETRNFHARENR agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
P ERNFREENKEEHERET rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
AEBARRERNHEEE S BT under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
m follows:
2014 2013
AR®BT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEiE—F Not later than 1 year 62,676 62,848
BE—FETBBEAF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 76,559 63,533
BdAF Later than 5 years 27,883 26,785
167,118 153,166

2/] 2 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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38 i (&)

(c)

BRERIE

MR2014E12A318  REE G %
BrBEAREEZEREAENT

BAIER2010F 11 BRI ML 2 REB W
HOEELIEZBEBERRERAE
REREESEB2RELNRERRD
A) 2 BBINIR {9 - PR20144F 12 H 31
B AEBEERTELIFEINE
B4 AR%51,665,0007C  HE
RE0%E A EFNRBERA-RE
EPEH T AR 51,665,000
18 R2015F6 A30H AT X 1+ »

38 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Investment commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has the
following significant commitments in respect of capital
contribution to investments:

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into
in November 2010, the existing shareholders of
Wondersun Dairy agreed to subscribe for additional
shares of the company in proportion of their respective
equity interests. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group has made additional capital contribution of
approximately RMB51,665,000 to Wondersun Dairy,
representing 50% of the committed new subscription of
share capital. The remaining commitment of investment
of approximately RMB51,665,000 will be payable no
later than 30 June 2015.
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(@ BEBAIXZ:

ERH S EITRZMT

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NEBZBEREBRAR BHE—DERG The ultimate holding company of the Group is %t — 12 {H
BRAF([H—0FE]) TIREEE ABR AT (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation*) (‘UPE”), a
FRXGFMER AT L2 AFE  RNAF company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
BEERBRE—DEZHBRARIRAEE The directors of the Company are of the view that the
ZEBTERBENTEA BT - subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the

Group are regarded as related parties.

(@) Transactions with related parties:

The following transactions are carried out with related

parties:
2014 2013
B 5 ARETT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RFLR Eip 5 & Sales of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
B—rECZHBRAR Subsidiaries of UPE 241,702 270,743
AEBZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates of
ErRl/N]| the Group 86,942 12,265
328,644 283,008
IR RLR B p R Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
X2 MEAF Subsidiaries of UPE 3,242,552 2,365,172
AEBZEEDER Joint ventures and associates
El/N of the Group 443,004 353,802
3,685,556 2,718,974
YRS FT % Logistics service expense: ()
G—EZHBAG Subsidiaries of UPE 7,056 25,155
B AR TE A Consultation service income: ()
H—rEIHEBRF Subsidiaries of UPE 42,894 21,871
AEBZEEDER Joint ventures and associates
GENT of the Group 3,492 1,170
46,386 23,041
HEYE BERFZE  Sales of property,
plant and equipment (i)
H—EZHBAA Subsidiaries of UPE 520,000 698,311
HABIWA Rental income: (il
X IHMEBERTF Subsidiaries of UPE 44,888 28,657
AEBEBZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates
/NS of the Group 1,704 -
46,592 28,657
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39 BHMALEXES (&)

(@

BEELRS:

B3

(if)

(i)

(%)

WX AW ARARAEEER
NBERXEBEEL-

b e s KRR BE
&SR BRTS R IR 5 R
THAR B AR B 1 8 2 AR E AT -

M2014F 128 AL E E K\
H—EZMRNEB ARG D
ELREER(BREEFEA
(TPET]) BRTPR#E RIS Z fk
BER) BENEAARK
520,000,0007T ' E £ FI 15 A A
R #168,922,000%! B 7 £ b |
15 (MfsE27)

HeEEEMEZBA - RRE
RIRITT PRI Sk 2 f KT

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Transactions with related parties: (Continued)

*

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The above sales of finished goods and raw materials,
purchases, receipt of logistics service and provision of
consultation service are carried out in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

In December 2014, the Group completed the disposal
of various production lines for the manufacturing of PET
and TP packaging and bottling for beverage products,
to two subsidiaries of UPE at a total cash consideration
of RMB520,000,000. The Group derived a gain from
the disposal amounting to RMB168,922,000 which was
recorded in “other gains” (Note 27).

Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.
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39 BHMAXRE (& 39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) EEEAEE &eR: (b) Balances with related parties:
MR2014F12A31H  AEFEEHE The Group has the following significant balances with its
BAlE B A AT EREH: related parties as at 31 December 2014:

2014 2013
AR%T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JiE Ui A B 77 R - Balances due from related parties:
TEWE Z B Trade receivables (Note 17):
(BMI5E17) -
m—EZMEAR Subsidiaries of UPE 24,475 32,171
REBzEERE Joint ventures and associates
NS of the Group 2,370 -
26,845 32,171
TETHBEREMEN  Prepayments and other receivables
#E (K15E18) - (Note 18):
m—EZMEAR Subsidiaries of UPE 362,193 29,793
AEBEZEEDE Joint ventures and associates
& XN of the Group 7,085 1,595
369,278 31,388
396,123 63,559
JE 1 B S 5 B R - Balances due to related parties:
FEITE Z 8- Trade payables (Note 23):
(Fff5E23) -
H—EIZHERTF Subsidiaries of UPE 150,036 157,816
rEBrAEERE Joint ventures and associates
JS& AN of the Group 28,212 11,752
178,248 169,568

2/] 6 #— ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BEARXS (&) 39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) EEREAEEL AEeR: () (b) Balances with related parties: (Continued)
REEER - BRI EN BT 24 The carrying amounts of balances due from and due to
HROEEDEEEAFEES- related parties approximate their fair value as at balance

sheet dates.

() FEEEBAEHM: (c) Key management compensation:

2014 2013
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e EAKREMBF  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 10,681 12,282
Bt B 2 7] 40 SUBSIDIARIES

TXFH|HR2014%12A31H 2 T &t

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

BAAe of the Company as at 31 December 2014.
EMALEAR
ARER wHEREH BRTRARRE PR TEERCEHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
ERES Directly owned
G—DNERERATF HERS 798,080,000% 7 100% 100% BEER /FHEHS
20066 H29H
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD798,080,000 Investment holding/Cayman
29 June 2006 Islands
EEREE Indirectly owned
F—c¥ (RE)REFRRA HE g 978,670,000% 7 100% 100%  BEER/HE
1998437108
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD978,670,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.*) 10 March 1998
MEF-CERMEBBRAR HESEARE 37,500,000% 10 100% 100%  EEREEHRE BM
199241 A13H RhE,/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumqj, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.) 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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MELR (&)

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMARLIER,
ARAER wE R A ERTRARZRA FisRE TEEY/REHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
ERGE—REERAF FEER 23,400,000% 7 100% 100%  EERHEHEE/ HE
199254 A2H
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD23,400,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 2 April 1992 instant noodles/PRC
HEG—CERMERAA HR B K 65,000,0005 & 100% 100%  HERHEERH
199344 A 148 RHEE,/ hE
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RIS —r¥EmERAA HEE L 96,000,000% T 100% 100%  4EREERH
1993655148 RAEE/+E
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.*) 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RES—CERmARAR RERE 59,600,000 7T 100% 100%  AEREERH
19937 A78 RHEE/HE
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BEMG—EER AR B N 75,000,000 7. 100% 100%  4ERHEERH
1994612 A50 RAEE/+E
(Guangzhou President Enterprises Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Corp.”) 5 December 1994 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EHRE-CEBRRT REE 39,900,000% 7T 100% 100% FERBERH
1995464150 RAEE/FE
(Shenyang President Enterprises Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BRF—CEERAR FEISHE 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  AERBEERH
199842 A23H RAEE/HH
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BREER—CEERAA REREE 25,000,00035 7 100% 100%  HERHEERH
199842 F 268 RHEE/ R E
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 26 February 1998 beverages and instant

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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EMRLER
kL BHRAH ERTRARKRAE PR E TEEE/SEnY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
ERGE—RRERAF REER 29,500,000% 7T 100% 100%  AERBEEHH/HE
2001424208
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD29,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.*) 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
HEFR—EERRA hEHE 44,000,000% 10 100% 100%  FEREEHRH
200155 18K RhE,/ HE
(Nanchang President Enterprises Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BHE—CEERAR B M 20,000,0003 T 100% 100%  EERBEESH
200147 F198 R/ HE
(Fuzhou President Enterprises Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNG—EERRA ST 37,000,000% 10 100% 100%  FEREERH
200246 258 RhER,/ HE
(Zhengzhou President Enterprises Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G- (LB BERRRF HE g 8,600,000% 7T 100% 100% HH FRERERES/
2005%10A178 e
(President (Shanghai) Trading Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages,
Co., Ltd.") 17 October 2005 instant noodles and food
products/PRC
SEEERNERAT =) 1,000,000% & % 100% 100%  ANERER/ &2
200612 A28H
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERG-CERRARAT HE R 30,000,000% T 100% 100%  HEREEHRH
2007411488 RAEE/ HE
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EEERBRAA ) 1,601,9205 7T 100% 100%  REER/EE
200856450
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong USD1,601,920 Investment holding/Hong
Co., Limited.) 5 June 2008 Kong

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMARLIER,
AR LR wEHRAH ERTRARZRA FrERE TEEY/REHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
BEH—CEFRAF PEES 4,150,000% 7 100% 100%  EERHEERH/HRE
200952 208
(Bama President Enterprises Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
B-EBEERERAA B 4,089,655,6007% 7T 100% 100%  REERRES
200944 A308
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD4,089,655,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
SELRERFA(LE) HE L 150,000 7 100% 100%  ERHHA
BRAF 200945H128
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.”) 12 May 2009
BERG—CERRERAT HEEZ 1,000,000% 7t 100% 100%  EEREEHRE/HE
201063 A9H
(Zixi President Enterprises Drinks Zixi, PRC. USD1,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 9 March 2010 beverages/PRC
DG CEERAF mERY 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREERE
201049A1H RAEE/+E
(Changsha President Enterprises Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REBG-HEEERCERRR PR A K %1,000,0007C 100% 100% BRI/ PE
201048H24H
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010
Culture Limited Company?*)
BIG—CEERAA hEET 25,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EERHERE
201010 A28F RAEE/HE
(Zhanjiang President Enterprises Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
HEG-PEERATA mERmE 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EEREESH
2010511 168 EHEE/ HE
(Nanning President Enterprises Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMRLER
ARAR R B ERTRARKRAE PR E TEEE/SEnY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
REH-CEERAF RERE 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBEEHH/HE
2010412428
(Changchun President Enterprises Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
MR&G—CEERAT R B T 3 20,000,000 7 100% 100%  FHREREE®
20105124150
(Akesu President Enterprises Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Co., Ltd.%) 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
MG —ERRAF REIZEM 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% HEREESH
2011415280 RHER/ HE
(Taizhou President Enterprises Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERR—EERAR REEE 33,600,000 1. 100% 100%  EARRMRIAFERILE
2011425168 REE/HE
(Chongging President Enterprises Chongqing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Co., Ltd.%) 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
BRGE—CEERDA RE AR 20,000,000% 1L 100% 100% EERBERH
2011425248 R ER/ HE
(Balyin President Enterprises Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
LEG-EBRREXZBRAR HE g AR #60,000,0007T 100% 100%  HEER/H
2003%8A1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC
Century Co., Ltd.") 1 August 2003
IEG-CRERFAERART  PELE AR #20,000,00070 100% 100%  REAER/HE
2003%7H18H
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd.")
BEGE—CEERAF hEEE 14,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBERE/F
201143A8H
(Hainan President Enterprises Chengmai, PRC. USD14,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC

% — ¥ FEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HMARLIER,
ARAER wE R A ERTRARZRA FisRE TEEY/REHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
ARES—CEERAA REARE 35,000,000% 7 100% 100%  4ERHEERH
201011 A15H RAEE/+E
(Shijiazhuang President Enterprises  Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 15 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BRESA-CEERATF HEER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBEERE
2011547188 RAEE/HE
(Jinan President Enterprises Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EGS—LEERAA REER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEERH
20117 A6H RAEE/HE
(Guiyang President Enterprises Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS- EBRRKERAA REIH N 4,800,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEEZK/FE
201167 H6H
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.”) 6 July 2011 water/PRC
IEGERRESEBRAA RE G 950,000% 7T 100% 100%  ERERAKIEEM
201146A288 it Y
(President (Shanghai) Private Label ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Marketing & Trading Co., Ltd.) 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
PRC
MG EEBRAR FEL 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HAEREESH
201156A218 RFHEE/HE
(Hangzhou President Enterprises Hangzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 21 June 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BME—CEERLR HEBRM 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EERBEEHHE/F
201149A2H
(Xuzhou President Enterprises Xuzhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
G-BmE(RL)ERAA REE 10,000,000 7T 100% 100% ERERGHE/HRE
20124 3A28H
(President (Kunshan) Trading Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.%) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
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40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMRLER
ARAR BHRAH ERTRARKRAE PR E TEEE/SEnY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
G- rEERAR RETE 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREESRE/F
201243 A9H
(Henan President Enterprises Henan,PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
ZRf—CEBRKERRA hEER 1,700,000% 70 100% 100%  EEERMRIAXEM
2012454308 Bz h
(Wuyuan President Enterprises Wuyuan, PRC. USD1,700,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.*) 30 May 2012 food and dairy products/
PRC
REF—CEERRA IR 30,000,000 1. 100% 100%  HERHEEHH
20124768 R/ HE
(Shaanxi President Enterprises Shaanxi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IEHG—CEERAF HEER 30,000,000% 70 100% 100%  EEERGHE/HEH
2012911 A5H
(Jiangsu President Enterprises Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.") 5 November 2012 food products/PRC
RAWLG—0% (FM)BRK B R AR #135,000,0007T 100% 100% EEBRK/ RE
BRAA 201337150
Changbaishan Mountain President Jilin,PRC. RMB135,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
Enterprises (Jilin) Mineral Water 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Co., Ltd.")
F—0% (R EEREEFRAF RERWL AR #60,000,0007 100% 100%  RibE/+RH
201354 A9H
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Kunshan,PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Real Estate Development 9 April 2013
Co., Ltd.%)
HEEG-EARATA BRIl 13,200,000 7T 100% 100% EERBERE HE
2013%4 7228
(Ningxia President Enterprises Yinchuan, PRC. USD13,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
AELF—rEBRAT WA 30,000,000 7. 100% 100%  EERHEEHRE
20135498 R/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and instant
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MEAT (&) 40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HMARLIER,
AR LR wE R A ERTRARZRA FisRE TEEY/REHY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2014 2013
ERG—CERHRRBRAT i 49,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREERE
1t 7201346 A3H RAEE/+E
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD49,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink & Food Co., Ltd.") 3 June 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
IWEG—CEEBRAF HEEH 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERBEERH/HE
20135950
(Shanxi President Enterprises Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
TR CEERAA HE g 40,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HEERQHE/HE
200141073148
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co.,Ltd *) 14 October 2001 food products/PRC
WEE S - EEMBMEE Hh BT ] B 19,500,000 7 100% 100%  HEREEHE/HE
BRAA 2013F11A18
(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi) Hutubi, PRC. USD19,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Tomato Products Technology®) 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
CO, Ltd.")
FRE—ERBRRERAA HE L 15,000,000% 7T 100% - EEREESH
2014657158 RFEE/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD15,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shanghai) Drink & Food 15 May 2014 beverages and instant
Co.,Ltd.") noodles/PRC
R—HE (B ERAA RELHIL AR 96,000,0007 100% - EeERQHE/TE
200449A23H
(Uni-President Trading (Hubei) Hubei, PRC. RMB96,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co.,Ltd.") 23 September 2004 food products/PRC
REH—CEFRAA REXE 12,000,000% T 100% - EEREESH/HE
201448H15H
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co.,Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
AR HE - 88 REBNHEBLQF All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong

ERERECER -NASHSEMK
Ve—HMBEARERRZARE

ERF .

* RXEABDBEARRERERNBE

PXERISH -

are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.

*

The English name represents the best effort by management of

the Company in translating the Chinese name.

#i— ¥ FEER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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# SFZ— A FMEIIERTIRAS]

UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—RAHAESHSEMEINERDR)

(Stock Code B2 #w5%: 220)
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